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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to
professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for
the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report
misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are
founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of
Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”), | am
presenting herewith the annual report of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2008.

For the year under review, the Group recorded revenue of
approximately HK$18,582,000, representing a growth of
4.4 times as compared to approximately HK$3,447,000
for the year ended 31 December 2007. The increase in
turnover was primarily the result of the expansion into a
new market segment in trading of computerised smart
sockets and accessories during the year.

When the new Board took over the management of the
Company in July 2008, it was faced with the task of
rectifying a situation whereby the high gearing ratio of the
existing business was besieged with declining operational
results. The focus of managerial action and resources
were devoted to rationalise the inefficient operations and
investments; and more importantly, to introduce new lines
of operation and business with stable and strong cash
flow contribution to the Group. During the year under
review, the Group has successfully expanded into a new
market segment in trading of computerised smart sockets
and accessories; and the substantial contribution from
this operation for the only five months ended 2008 has
simply reflected the commitment as well as the ability of
the existing management team.

Furthermore, subsequent to the year end, the Group
entered into a disposal agreement with an independent
third party which acquired the Group’s entire interest in
the information localisation business which has been
dormant for more than two years. As a result of this
disposal, the Group has had the distressed business
disposed of, and made a clean break against any
potential liabilities arising from the bank loans therein.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

The Board is committed to reviewing and identifying all
possible options to provide future cash flow to the Group
and will consequently undertake a strategic review of our
business so as to alleviate and improve the current
financial status of the Group and to enhance operational
performance, and strengthen the cash flow position of
the Group. Furthermore, the existing controlling
shareholder has also committed to continue to support
the Group financially whenever necessary.

Looking ahead, despite of the adverse economic
conditions caused by the global financial tsunami,
nevertheless, the Board strongly believes that with the
commitment, ability of the existing management team and
full support from the controlling shareholder, the Group
could be back on the right track financially as well as
operationally very soon. Therefore, trading of the
Company’s shares could be resumed hopefully in near
future. Last but not least, the Board would like to
emphasise that we are always committing ourselves to
review all possible alternatives to create future value for
our shareholders and investors.

Cheung Yu Ping
Chairman

11 March 2009
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND

ANALYSIS
BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group is principally
engaged in the provision of custom-made solutions,
trading of computer equipment, computerised smart
sockets and related accessories. The Group has
continuously expanded in variety of products and different
market segments to provide high quality products and
services to our customers. As a result, the revenue
generated from both the segments of custom-made
solutions business and trading business has grown
gradually during the year ended 31 December 2008.

When the new Board took over the management of the
Company in July 2008, it was faced with the task of
rectifying a situation whereby the high gearing ratio of the
existing business was besieged with declining operational
results. The focus of managerial action and resources
were devoted to rationalise the inefficient operations and
investments; and more importantly, to introduce new lines
of operation and business with stable and strong cash
flow contribution to the Group. During the year under
review, the Group has successfully expanded into a new
market segment in trading of computerised smart sockets
and accessories; and the substantial contribution from
this operation for the only five months ended 2008 has
simply reflected the commitment as well as the ability of
the existing management team.

Furthermore, subsequent to the year end, the Group
entered into a disposal agreement with an independent
third party which acquired the Group’s entire interest in
the information localisation business which has been
dormant for more than two years. Further details are
stated in the following section with the heading “Disposal
of information localisation business”. As a result of this
disposal, the Group has had the distressed business
disposed of, and made a clean break against any
potential liabilities arising from the bank loans therein. The
improved performance of the Group, financially as well as
operationally, has been apparent.

At the same time, the Group has undertaken a strategic
review on the operations in order to improve the current
business profile, and is committed to seeking all
possibilities to provide additional and sufficient cash flow
for the Group. As a result of which, trading of the
Company’s shares could be resumed hopefully in the
near future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND

ANALYSIS

Disposal of information localisation business

There was no business operation and no revenue
generated from the information localisation business
during the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007. In
view that the competition of translation services in the
PRC is keen and such business is not in line with the
future development of the Group. On 2 March 2009, the
Group entered into an agreement with an independent
third party to dispose of its information localisation
business as set out in Note 9 and 19 to the financial
statements. A gain on the disposal of approximately
HK$12,020,000 has been realised.

Provision of custom-made solutions

The custom-made solutions are specifically designed and
developed for the specific needs and requirement of a
particular customer. The Group has successfully expanded
its custom-made solutions business to hotel segment in
PRC, and will continuously enhance our service quality in
order to extend the market penetration.

Trading of computer equipment, computerised
smart sockets and accessories

With the valuable contribution from the new management
team, in July 2008, the Group obtained an overseas
distribution right of certain newly developed computerised
smart sockets and related accessories. During the second
half of 2008, the newly developed business, trading of
computerised smart sockets, had contributed to the
Group a turnover and gross profit of approximately
HK$15,548,000 and HK$2,489,000 respectively.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Overall Review

For the year under review, the Group recorded a turnover
of approximately HK$18,582,000, representing an increase
of approximately 4.4 times as compared with
approximately HK$3,447,000 for the year ended 31
December 2007. The gross profit of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2008 was approximately
HK$4,073,000, representing an increase of 4.2 times as
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND

ANALYSIS

compared with approximately HK$779,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2007. The great increment in
turnover and gross profit was mainly contributed by the
newly developed business, trading of computerised smart
sockets.

As the Group has undertaken strategic changes during
the year under review, expenses in respect of legal and
professional services and manpower, etc. were increased
considerably. As a result, loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company was approximately
HK$9,711,000, representing an increase of 80.6% as
compared with approximately HK$5,376,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2007.

Financial Resource and Liquidity

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had bank balances
and cash of approximately HK$5,073,000 (2007:
HK$675,000), no outstanding bank loan and other loans,
as such loans had been classified as liabilities directly
associated with assets classified as held for sale (2007:
HK$15,475,000) and was disposed of on 2 March 2009.
The Group had loans from a shareholder and a former
shareholder with carrying value of HK$12,210,000 and
HK$1,146,000 respectively, which are unsecured, interest
free and not repayable before 31 March 2011 and 24
January 2011 respectively. Furthermore, the existing
controlling shareholder will provide continuing financial
support to the Group whenever it is necessary.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2008, the total assets of the Group
was approximately HK$34,939,000 (2007: HK$24,345,000)
whereas the total liabilities were approximately
HK$49,803,000 (2007: HK$30,274,000). The gearing ratio
of the Group, calculated as total liabilities over total
assets, was 142.5% (2007: 124.4%). However,
subsequent to the disposal of the information localisation
business (as set out in Note 9 and 19 to the financial
statements), the gearing ratio of the Group has been
substantially reduced to 103.1%; and the current ratio,
calculated as current assets over current liabilities, has
been greatly improved from 80.8% to 176.7% as if the
said disposal had taken place on 31 December 2008.
The Directors will keep taking various measures to further
improve the liquidity and gearing position of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND

ANALYSIS

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Directors consider that the Group has no material
foreign exchange exposure.

Material Acquisition, Disposal and Significant
Investment of the Group

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group did
not have any material acquisition, disposal and significant
investment.

Pledge of Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2008, the Group did not have any
substantial pledge of assets and contingent liabilities.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2008.

CHANGE OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

On 26 May 2008, Hong Sheng Group Limited has
become the new controlling shareholder of the Group,
which own an aggregate of 142,651,965 issued shares of
the Company as at 31 December 2008, representing
approximately 71.33% of total issued share capital of the
Company. Details of the transaction have disclosed in the
circular dated 13 June 2008.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION AND
REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2008, the Group employed 8 staff
(2007: 10 staff). The staff cost (including directors’
remuneration) was approximately HK$3,671,000 for the
year under review (2007: HK$2,149,000). Remuneration is
determined by reference to market terms and the
performance, qualification and experience of individual
employee.

The Group provides benefits in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations including the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme of Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVE.RNANCE
REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining corporate
governance of high standards and quality procedures.
The Company has put in place governance practices with
emphasis on the integrity to shareholders and quality of
disclosure, transparency and accountability to
shareholders for the sake of maximising returns to
shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company has complied with the code provisions set
out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2008
except for the deviations from code provisions A.2.1
which is explained in the following relevant paragraph.
Below are the major corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company with specific reference to the
Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of
dealing set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules (the “Required Standard”) as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors of the
Company and has complied with the Required Standard.
A copy of the Required Standard is sent to each Director
of the Company upon appointment. The Company had
made specific enquiry of all its Directors, each of the
Directors of the Company confirmed his compliance with
the Required Standard throughout the year ended 31
December 2008.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling of
the Company, overseeing as well as the supervision of its
business, approval of strategic plans and monitoring the
Company’s performance. The Board delegates the day-
to-day operations to the executive Directors and senior
management, while reserving certain key matters for its
approval.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2008, the
board of Directors (the “Board”) consisted of three
independent non-executive Directors that was more than
one-third of the Board. As at 31 December 2008, the
Board comprised six Directors, of which three were
executive Directors namely Mr. Cheung Yu Ping, Mr. Chan
Chi Chiu Henry and Mr. Lee Ah Sang; and three were
independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Jin
Guangjun, Mr. Law Kin Ho and Mr. Chan Wai Fat. There
is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship amongst the Directors.

The Board has the necessary skills and experience
appropriate for discharging their duties as Directors in the
best interests of the Company and that the current board
size is adequate for its present operations. Each of the
Directors keeps abreast of his responsibilities as a
Director of the Company and of the conduct, business
activities and development of the Company.

Members of the Board met on a regular basis and on ad
hoc basis to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group. There
were ten board meetings held during the year 2008.
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CORPORATEGOVERNANCE

REPORT

Attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings held

during the year:

Executive Directors

BITES

Mr. Cheung Yu Ping (Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)
RFEVRLE (FEFTEAEZ)
Mr. Chan Chi Chiu Henry
(Vice Chairman)
PREEEE (BIFE)
Mr. Lee Ah Sang
FhAESSE
Mrs. Tinna Chan Yee
R R 22 1
Mr. Henry Dicker Yee
(Chief Executive Officer)
REREE (TTHAEZ)
Mrs. Sana Bakhtiar Ahmed
Sana Bakhtiar Anmed % +
Mr. Tan Shu Jiang
BT EA

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BYFHITES

Mr. Jin Guangjun
TRASLE

Mr. Law Kin Ho
ER=EE

Mr. Chan Wai Fat
PRIEZZE T E

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee
[RE&ESTE

Mr. Ronald Garry Hopp
Ronald Garry Hopp 7t 4
Mr. Yip Tai Him
ERSESE

2

(appointed on 14 July 2008)

(RZZEZENFELATHBREZRT)
(appointed on 14 July 2008)

(RZZEENFELATHBEZRE)
(appointed on 2 October 2008)
(RZZEZENFT+HZAEZE)
(resigned on 14 July 2008)

(RZZEZENFLA+TMAEEE)
(resigned on 14 July 2008)

(R=ZZEENFELATHEBHEE)
(resigned on 14 July 2008)

(RZZEZTNFELATMAEE)
(resigned on 14 July 2008)

(R-ZZEZNFLATHBEBE)

(appointed on 14 July 2008)

(RZZEENFELATHBEZRE)
(appointed on 14 July 2008)
(RZZEZNFLATHBEZRT)
(appointed on 14 July 2008)

(RZZEENFLATHBEZRE)
(resigned on 14 July 2008)
(R=ZZEZENFELATHEBBHEE)
(resigned on 14 July 2008)

(RZZEZTNFELATMAEE)
(resigned on 14 July 2008)

(R-ZZEZNFLATHBEBE)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Cheung Yu Ping is the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. Pursuant to A.2.1 of
the Code, The roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Board considers that vesting
the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer in
the same person will not impair the balance of power
and authority between the Board and the management of
the Company. The Board also believes that the current
structure provides the Company with strong and
consistent leadership and allows for effective and efficient
planning and implementation of business decisions and
strategies. It is in the best interest of the Group to
maintain the current practice for continuous efficient
operations and development of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is entrusted with the duty to put in place a
proper corporate governance structure of the Company. It
is primarily responsible for setting directions, formulating
strategies, monitoring performance and managing the
risks of the Group. Under the Board, there are currently
three subcommittees, namely Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.
Audit committee and Remuneration committee perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective
terms of reference and assist the Board in supervising
certain functions of the senior management. Nomination
committee assists the Board in nominating candidates for
directorship, reviewing the size and composition of the
Board and making recommendation to the Board on
appointment of directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with a
specific written terms of reference.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board regarding the Group’s
policy and structure for remuneration of Directors and
senior management and determining the specific
remuneration packages of directors and senior
management of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

As at 31 December 2008, the Remuneration Committee
comprises four members with a majority of whom are
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Jin
Guangjun, Mr. Law Kin Ho, Mr. Chan Wai Fat and Mr.
Cheung Yu Ping. The Committee is chaired by an
independent non-executive Director, Mr. Jin Guangjun.

The Remuneration Committee is scheduled to meet at
least once a year. One meeting was held during the
financial year ended 31 December 2008. The attendance
of each member is set out as follows:

Attendance of individual members at Remuneration
Committee meeting held during the year:

TEERKE

RZEBEZNF+-_A=+—8 HFEE
BEghlUEKEEANK KRHEDEBBILIE
MITEE KEDHNASEE LA #
fRxfE REBLEERKFFLEA-
BUYNTEZSREELRAETZES
EJF o

FMZEenEBFRIBITRE
ZoFHEZREERBE_TTENF+=
A=+t —BLUBRFEARALT-—RE
@ BREBZHEREEIWMT

fRKEHEFARTZFNEZESS
R

Attendance Percentage

R B Baot
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHITES
Mr. Jin Guangjun (Chairman) (appointed on 14 July 2008) 1/1 100%
CEENE (TE) (RZZEENFELATHBEEZRTE)
Mr. Law Kin Ho (appointed on 14 July 2008) 1/1 100%
BREE (RZZEENFLATHBEZRE)
Mr. Chan Wai Fat (appointed on 14 July 2008) 1/1 100%
PR {2 3% % A& (RZZEZENFELATHBREZRT)
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee (Chairman) (resigned on 14 July 2008) N/A N/A
RS A () (RZZEZTNFELATMABTE) i A i A
Mr. Ronald Garry Hopp (resigned on 14 July 2008) N/A N/A
Ronald Garry Hopp %t 4 (R=ZZFZNEFLATOBEET) i@ A i@ A
Mr. Yip Tai Him (resigned on 14 July 2008) N/A N/A
EREEE (R=ZZZENFELATMABABE) T3 i
Executive Director
BITES
Mr. Cheung Yu Ping (appointed on 14 July 2008) 1/1 100%

RTFEE

(R-ZFEENFLA+THREZE)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Directors is decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the market
terms, individual experiences, duties and responsibilities.

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to Directors by
the Company and its subsidiaries in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries. The amounts paid to each Director of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2008 are set
out in Note 11 to the financial statement.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprised four members with
a majority of whom are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Jin Guangjun, Mr. Law Kin Ho, Mr.
Chan Wai Fat and Mr. Cheung Yu Ping. The Committee
is chaired by an independent non-executive Director, Mr.
Jin Guangjun. The Nomination Committee is responsible
for nominating potential candidates for directorship,
reviewing the nomination of directors and making
recommendations to the Board on such appointments.
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CCWHNDRATE(MJVERNAAKHE
REPORT

The Nomination Committee is scheduled to meet at least
once a year for the review of the structure, size and
composition of the Board. In addition, the Nomination
Committee also meets as it is required to consider
nomination related matters. One meeting was held during
the financial year. The attendance of each member is set
out as follows:

Attendance of individual members at Nomination
Committee meeting held during the year:

Independent Non-Executive Directors

k%ﬁ%%#%!ﬁ? BiT—Rke
CUARFEEE 24 % ﬁ@&@ﬁ
li|:9|\ CRBZEENRE BITEE
NEZEIRZABER- h%?%mﬂﬁ
VBREERIT-—AEZ - SKEZHE

IREEF T

BRIKELEFARITZIREZEES

IR e

Attendance Percentage

BAFHTES

Mr. Jin Guangjun (Chairman)

CEBSLE (EE)
Mr. Law Kin Ho
mEERLE

Mr. Chan Wai Fat
fR12 35 4

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee
RE&ESLLE

Mr. Ronald Garry Hopp (Chairman)
Ronald Garry Hopp %t 4 (£ /&)

Mr. Yip Tai Him

L35 E i

Executive Director

BTES

Mr. Cheung Yu Ping
®RFEFEE

(appointed on 14 July 2008)
(RZZEZENFELATHBREZRT)
(appointed on 14 July 2008)

(R=ZZEZENFLA+UHEZT)
(appointed on 14 July 2008)

(RZZEENFELATHBEZRE)
(resigned on 14 July 2008)
(R=FZN\FLAFTHEFHE)
(resigned on 14 July 2008)

(R=ZZEZTNFELATMABEE)
(resigned on 14 July 2008)

(R—ZZTN\FLtAT+MOBEBE)

(appointed on 14 July 2008)
(RZZEENFELATHBEZRE)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Under its terms of reference which are aligned with the
code provisions set out in the Code, the Audit Committee
is set up based on the guidelines recommended by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants to
evaluate the overall effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management frameworks, to review the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and other financial reporting matters and ensure the
completeness, accuracy and fairness of the financial
statements, to monitor compliance with statutory and
listing requirements and to oversee the relationship with
the external auditors.

The Audit Committee comprised three members
throughout the year ended 31 December 2008. At least
one member has an appropriate professional qualification
or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The Audit Committee reviews the quarterly, interim and
annual reports before submission to the Board. The Audit
Committee focuses not only on the impact of the
changes in accounting policies and practices but also on
the compliance with accounting standards, the GEM
Listing Rules and the legal requirements in the review of
the Company’s quarterly, interim and annual reports.

Senior representatives of the external auditors, executive
Directors and senior executives are invited to attend the
meetings, if required. Each member of the Audit
Committee members had unrestricted access to the
Group’s external auditors and the Management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE TtEERBRE

REPORT

The Audit Committee met five times during the year and
the attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BYFHITES

Mr. Jin Guangjun (Chairman)

TEEBERE (FE)

Mr. Law Kin Ho

‘iEZREE

Mr. Chan Wai Fat

PR18 3% kA&

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee

RE&E KL

Mr. Ronald Garry Hopp (Chairman)
Ronald Garry Hopp 4t 4 (£ /%)

Mr. Yip Tai Him

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company reviews the appointment of an external
auditor on an annual basis including a review of the audit
scope and approval of the audit fee. During the year, the
fee payable to the Company’s external auditor for the
annual audit amounted to HK$480,000 and a fee of

(appointed on 14 July 2008)
(R=ZZEZENFLATHREZT)
(appointed on 14 July 2008)
(MZZEZENFELATHBEERE)
(appointed on 14 July 2008)

(R=ZZEZENFELA+UHEZT)
(resigned on 14 July 2008)

(RZZEZTNFELATMAEE)
(resigned on 14 July 2008)
(MZZEZTNFLHA+TEAEEE)
(resigned on 14 July 2008)
(RZZEZENFLATEAEEE)

2R A =

HK$150,000 has been paid for non-audit related activities. BH -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control systems. The internal control
system includes safeguard of the interest of shareholders
and the Group’s assets.

During the year, the Board had conducted a review of
the system of internal control to ensure the effectiveness
and adequacy of the system. The Board will continue to
carry out regular review on the internal control system.
The Group will constantly improve and strengthen its
corporate control with reference to changes in the
operating environment in order to enhance its corporate
governance and safeguard the interests of its
shareholders.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS POLICY

During the year, related party transactions are periodically
reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company uses two-way communication channels to
account to shareholders and investors for the
performance of the Company. All the shareholders have
received not less than 20 clear business days’ notice of
annual general meeting at which Directors are available to
answer questions on the business. Extensive information
about the Group’s activities is provided in its annual
report, interim report and quarterly reports which are sent
to shareholders and investors. The Company’s
announcements, press releases and publications are
published and are also available on the GEM website and
on the Company’s website at www.aurumpacific.com.hk.

In order to provide effective disclosure to shareholders
and investors and to ensure they all receive equal access
to the same information at the same time, information
considered to be of a price sensitive nature is released
by way of formal public announcement as required by the
GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Yu Ping (RF¥), aged 51, has been
appointed as an executive Director, the chairman and the
chief executive officer of the Company with effect from
14 July 2008. He has extensive experience in consultancy
business of energy, information technology related
projects and property investment in the PRC. He
graduated at Harbin Institute of Technology, the PRC with
a degree in construction engineering. Mr. Cheung has
been operating his consultant business with offices both
in Shenzhen and Hong Kong. Prior to starting his own
business, he was a public servant and vated as a senior
engineer in the PRC from 1982 to 2000, where extensive
connections and experience in the industry were
developed. Currently, he is also an adjunct professor in
the Shenzhen Graduate School of Harbin Institute of
Technology.

Mr. Chan Chi Chiu Henry (BRE#E), aged 37, has been
appointed as an executive Director and authorised
representative of the Company with effect from 14 July
2008. He is currently the vice chairman of the Company.
He has been involved in the finance industry and
information technology industry for more than 13 vyears.
He graduated with Master Degree of Business
Administration and Master Degree of Money, Banking and
Finance from University of Nottingham and University of
Birmingham, United Kingdom respectively and an
Executive Master Degree of Business Administration from
Tsinghua University, PRC. Mr. Chan is appointed as
District Councillor of Tai Po district, Hong Kong for the
period commencing from 2008 to 2012.

Mr. Lee Ah Sang (Zi4), aged 45, has been appointed
as an executive Director of the Company with effect from
2 QOctober 2008. He is an experienced financial market
practitioner who has worked in the financial field for more
than 20 years. Mr. Lee was a key employee with the
securities arm of one of the largest Chinese banks in
Hong Kong. Mr. Lee joined the investment arena before
the unification of the four stock exchanges, and is now
the general manager and an executive director of a local
securities company. Mr. Lee is a licensed Responsible
Officer with Securities and Futures Commission and he is
also a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Securities.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT PROFILES

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jin Guangjun (£&E%£), aged 48, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 14 July 2008. He has extensive experience in
the field of civil engineering and architecture. He
graduated with a Doctor of Philosophy in architecture
from Tongji University, China, and a Master Degree in
architecture from University of Harbin, PRC and
Massachusetts Institute of Technology, USA. Currently, Mr.
Jin is an executive dean and professor in the Shenzhen
Graduate School of Harbin Institute of Technology.

Mr. Law Kin Ho (%), aged 41, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director with effect from
14 July 2008. He graduated with a Bachelor’'s degree
from Hong Kong Baptist University majoring in accounting.
He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, United Kingdom. Mr.
Law is currently practicing as a certified public accountant
in Hong Kong. He has years of experience in the field of
accounting, audit and taxation, and worked for an
international accounting firm and Stock Exchange in Hong
Kong. Mr. Law is also an independent non-executive
director of Coastal Greenland Limited, a company listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong
(stock code: 1124).

Mr. Chan Wai Fat (PBR{£%), aged 41, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 14 July 2008. Mr. Chan is currently a Senior
Vice President of a securities house in Hong Kong. Mr.
Chan holds a bachelor degree of commerce from The
University of Western Australia and a master degree of
business administration from Deakin University, Australia.
He has years of experience in compliance, accounting
and financial management in securities industry and has
worked for international accounting firms and listed
company in Hong Kong. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Certified
Practising Accountant of CPA Australia.

EERSHEEAS
a5

BYFHAITES

EEERLE BER BE_TT/N\FLA
THEEEZERBIYFATES K
%i*l&&@%ﬁ%ﬁ%%%%°ﬁ
EXRTERBEANZ  FEBEEKNE
MEBEMEETER  DRIERTEE
TEMRTIEEETEM - BAT 254
RRBEIXRERINARLER 2FH
B & M IR -

EREEE  Mpx- Q_Y?J\Etﬂ
+IUHREZTAEBIYIERITES
BEXERBEBRZTGKRE H@Qﬁﬂiﬂ
- BRESEMAE REHER
RN ﬁ@%o%%iﬁWE/ﬁ%
RUESFM REF BERARBEA
ﬁ%ﬁyil¢m¥ LEBRBEED

aaﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬂiﬁoﬁﬁiﬁ
R§/%§%IWiﬁ AL BB R
BERA T(H&fﬁﬁ%ﬁ:ﬁzﬂr)Z%ﬁ#
HMITES -

REBRELE 4R BE_TT/\FLA
+mat%§&%§ #ﬂﬂ%% BR
EEBRIRAB —EHRA 2@ REE
H-BREERAORMNABEREZHE
B8 UEEMNBEARBERE LT
BMEEBELTEM -RRBHFEZAEHR
S LMBERTAREESFRR G
TBRREENEERSAMITRETA
Al WABBEMAG ZE RS
FMORMEEtE A g 2 ik M & 5HAD o

RETHEEARAT —TENEFH 21



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT PROFILES

COMPANY SECRETARY, QUALIFIED
ACCOUNTANT AND AUTHORISED
REPRESENTATIVE

Ms. Wong Bing Ni (Ek$E), has been appointed as
company secretary, qualified accountant and authorised
representative of the Company with effect from 4 August
2008. Ms. Wong is an associate member the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. She holds a master
degree in Professional Accounting and she has years of
experience in accounting and financial management in
listed companies in Hong Kong.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors hereby present their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2008.

SUSPENSION OF TRADING

Trading in the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange has been suspended from 22 March 2007 and
will remain suspended until further notice.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 16 October 2008
and issuance of the Certificate of Incorporation on
Change of Name by the Registrar of Companies in the
Cayman lIslands and the Registrar of Companies in Hong
Kong on 17 October 2008 and 12 November 2008
respectively, the name of the Company has been changed
from “S & D International Development Group Limited %
TEEBEEREBAR AT to “Aurum Pacific (China)
Group Limited BRiHBISEARAF]".

The stock short name, under which the shares of the
Company be traded on GEM, has been changed to
“AURUM PACIFIC” in English and “EB15FE” in Chinese
with effect from 24 November 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding while the Group is principally engaged in the
provision of custom-made solutions, trading of computer
equipment, computerised smart sockets and related
accessories during the year.

The principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set
out in Note 16 to the financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and
purchases attributable to the major customers and
suppliers respectively during the financial year under
review is as follows:

EEERE

TEEFRHER

EMAEENOEYREESEA
SR RHERN 2 HERREEHET
m

Percentage of
the Group’s total

EEEEAEZAEDLL
Sales Purchases
HE 23
The largest customer BRAEF 83.7%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFEE 98.5%
The largest supplier R AHIER 91.2%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate ARHERNEET 100%

During the year ended 31 December 2008, none of the
Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the
Company (who to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group and the state of the Group’s
and the Company’s affairs for the year ended 31
December 2008 are set out in the financial statements on
pages 42 to 127.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2008.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on the financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2008, the Company did not have any
reserves available for distribution to equity holders of the
Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 14 on the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the financial year are set out in Note 22
on the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS BEx

The changes of Directors during the financial year and up RAVBREERBEERARESABHCES

to the date of this report are: BT

Executive Directors

BTES

Mr. Cheung Yu Ping (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

RFFERE (FERTHAA)

Mr. Chan Chi Chiu Henry (Vice Chairman)
REBxTE (BIE/E)

Mr. Lee Ah Sang

FhAESRE

Mrs. Tinna Chan Yee

R K8 22 4

Mr. Henry Dicker Yee (Chief Executive Officer)
RERFKE (TTHAZ)

Mrs. Sana Bakhtiar Ahmed

Sana Bakhtiar Ahmed % +

Mr. Tan Shu Jiang

EEILEAE

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BYFHITES

Mr. Jin Guangjun

Mr. Law Kin Ho
‘iEZREE

Mr. Chan Wai Fat
[R1E 3% kA&

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee
[RE&E K&

Mr. Ronald Garry Hopp
Ronald Garry Hopp 7t 4
Mr. Yip Tai Him
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(appointed on 14 July 2008)
(RZZEZENFELHATHRAEZE)
(appointed on 14 July 2008)

(RZZFEZENFELATHEBRERE)
(appointed on 2 October 2008)
(RZZEZENFT+AZBEZE)
(resigned on 14 July 2008)
(RZZEZENFLH+HEABHE)
(resigned on 14 July 2008)

(RZZEZENFELHTHEABT)
(resigned on 14 July 2008)
(RZZEZTNFELATMAEE)
(resigned on 14 July 2008)
(RZZEZNFLH+HEABHE)

(appointed on 14 July 2008)
(RZZEZENFELHATHRAEZE)
(appointed on 14 July 2008)

(RZZFEZENFELATHEBRERE)
(appointed on 14 July 2008)
(RZEZENFELATHAEZE)
(resigned on 14 July 2008)
(RZZEZENFLH+EABHE)
(resigned on 14 July 2008)

(RZZFZENFLATHEART)
(resigned on 14 July 2008)

(RZZEZNFLATHBEEE)



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

In accordance with article 108 (A) of the Company’s
articles of association, one-third of the Directors shall
retire at each annual general meeting from office by
rotation. Further, according to article 112 of the articles of
association of the Company, any director appointed by
the Directors to fill a casual vacancy in the Company
under that article shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting and shall then be eligible
for re-election at the meeting.

In accordance with Article 112, Mr. Cheung Yu Ping, Mr.
Chan Chi Chiu Henry, Mr. Lee Ah Sang, Mr. Jin
Guangjun, Mr. Law Kin Ho and Mr. Chan Wai Fat shall
retire from their offices as Directors. Being eligible, each
of Mr. Cheung Yu Ping, Mr. Chan Chi Chiu Henry, Mr.
Lee Ah Sang will offer himself for re-election as executive
Director, and each of Mr. Jin Guangjun, Mr. Law Kin Ho
and Mr. Chan Wai Fat will offer himself for re-election as
Independent non-executive Director.

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 20 to
22 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ CONTRACTS

Mr. Cheung Yu Ping, Mr. Chan Chi Chiu Henry and Mr.
Lee Ah Sang, the executive Directors, who have not
entered into any service contract with the Company and
are not appointed for a fixed term. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
service contract with the Company for an initial term of
one year commencing from 14 July 2008, unless
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other.

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Company’s articles of association
and the GEM Listing Rules.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has an unexpired service contract
which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2008, the interests and short
positions of the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); or (i) which were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (i) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

(i) Long positions in the shares of the
Company

Name of Directors Nature of Interest

EEERE

EERFETHRAERKRG A
ARORES 2 EERKXRE

R-ZZEENF+_A=1+—"H BFK
RRABEFETHABRAR R R E BB
EE(EEREBHRBEKHEXVE)
2D BERNKESFFREB AR
BEAS M EGENEXVIETRESD B
MEARRB KRB (BRERBREZESRK
HERIIZEREX 2 BE AR WEE
SR BHEE CEEIOAE ) k(i)ad &
RIREEH KB E GO FE3B26FER
EflmE iR iE 8l E ik £ AR Al
F5.46E5.67IK G AN A R B R P&
LU

i) REXAIRBZ2FE

Approximate
Number percentage of
of Shares shareholding

B R AE
EEnA EEME R4 8B Ao
Cheung Yu Ping Interest of a controlled corporation 142,651,965 71.33%
(Note 1)
RFF R E R
(Bt:E1)
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(i) Long positions in the shares of associated (i) AMEBLIEROZETR

corporation

Name of associated

Approximate
Number percentage of

Name of Directors Corporation Nature of Interest of Shares shareholding
B4 IR 4
EEpL HELEER EEME BROEE Bl
Cheung Yu Ping Hong Sheng Group Limited Interest of a controlled 510 51%
corporation (Note 1)
RFEF EEREEARAA REEE S (Mit1)
Note: Btat -
1. The interest in the Shares of Cheung Yu Ping was held 1. KFEENEBRBEREBFRAAF

through Hong Sheng Group Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which was beneficially and ultimately
owned as to 51% by Cheung Yu Ping and as to 49% by

Cai Dongmei.

BZERNOER MBEEEERA
AZEWEBTRADNBERFTF
REXZBERR&KEEAINK
49% °
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS WHO ARE REQUIRED TO
DISCLOSE THEIR INTEREST

Substantial Shareholders

To the best knowledge of the Directors, as at 31
December 2008, the following persons, other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, had an
interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who were expected to
be directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the

EEERE

TERREREAREREZZ
Htt AL
FERR

BEEFAME R_ZEZT ) N\F+_-A
=+t—H THAL(EEHARAE
BITHABBRIN RIRM HABBERN

HEREES KB IEMEXVE F2%3
DESEIR AR AR A KB R FTiEE 2
BRIAR  NEEXHERBNTRE
FORERBATEASEEAKE R
AlZBRRARE LB EMBERRAR

nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights B10% 3k A £ 2 #E %
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
member of the Group:
Number of Approximate
Shares percentage of
Name Capacity (Note 1) shareholding
g g A IR R
=x Egv) (Bt at1) B
Hong Sheng Group Limited Beneficial owner (Note 2) 142,651,965 (L) 71.33%
BREEBRFRAA EmmA A (Hit2)
Cai Dongmei Interest of a controlled corporation 142,651,965 (L) 71.33%
(Note 2)
EXih RiEEAEER (M it2)
Simplex Technology Investment Beneficial owner 16,896,363 (L) 8.45%
(Hong Kong) Co. Limited (Note 3)
(“Simplex”)
EBEBRRBMEIREBR A A EmmA A (HiE3)
(T8IR 1D
Shanghai Jiaoda Industrial Interest of a controlled corporation 16,896,363 (L) 8.45%
Investment Management (Note 3)
(Group) Limited
("Jiaoda Industrial Group”)
FPEBXREEREER (KE) IBEEE#EZ= (Hi73)
BRAR]
(IXRKREXEHE])
Shanghai Jiao Tong University Interest of a controlled corporation 16,896,363 (L) 8.45%

(Note 3)

EiBRmA R Ry AEERS (Hi23)
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Notes:
1. The letter “L” denotes the entity’s interests in the Shares.
2. The interest in the Shares of Cai Dongmei was held through

Hong Sheng Group Limited, the entire issued share capital of
which was beneficially and ultimately owned as to 51% by
Cheung Yu Ping and as to 49% by Cai Dongmei.

3. The interest in the Shares are held through Simplex, the entire
issued share capital of which was beneficially owned by Jiaoda
Industrial Group. The registered capital of Jiaoda Industrial Group
was owned as to 96.735% by Shanghai Jiao Tong University and
3.265% by Shanghai Jiaoda Enterprise Management Centre (_(E/&
RATEEEHL), an entity wholly owned by Shanghai Jiao
Tong University.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of other interests or short positions of any other
person (other than the Directors and chief executives and
the substantial shareholders of the Company) in the
Shares or underlying Shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO as at 31 December 2008.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) which was adopted on 25 November 2003
whereby the Directors of the Company may at their
discretion invite any employees, directors, suppliers,
customers, advisers, consultants, joint venture partners,
and any shareholders of any members of the Group or
any invested entities or any holders of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any invested
entities, to take up options to subscribe for Shares. The
Scheme became effective upon the listing of the
Company’s shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
on 9 January 2004.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Company had granted the
options at the exercise price of HK$0.45 per share and
HK$0.14 per share on 17 January 2005 and 10 October
2005 respectively, all the options granted have lapsed in
the past years. As at 31 December 2008, the Company
had no outstanding options.
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BREXREEIN RZFTNE+_-A
=t—B ARBETHER E@HEAM
AL (EERRRAETETHRAERE
F PR R M) AR 2 AR A 3 AE B8 Ak 1
RHEBALERARAREZESFMME
GBI FEBEHEFE2ECM b=
HORA e

G A s B

RRARHET—EBER_ZEET=F+—AH
T EARGZ B (58 )
Bt ARAEEAMERECTEE
FE SRR RS B RER
ABOEEH RAREEAREAT
REMBEARBZ EARE HAEE
(AR B AR S B BT
MEHZ BN EETRBBRE
BB AEARARGR -FT
T4 — A B R AR AR e
3% -

BEZFE AR R_ZTREF
—At+tAER=ZZETERF+ATHES
17 B &&= K0.45% T 0148 T 2 B
B ZEBEREC2TINBEEER
KR -R_EENF+_A=+—8"
RRARIWRBEMMERITE 2 BBIRHE -

BETEEEaRAT —TE AssR 31



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company, any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, in
which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year under review.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s articles of association, or law of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

LOAN FROM A SHAREHOLDER AND
A FORMER SHAREHOLDER

Particulars of loan from a shareholder and a former
shareholder of the Group as at 31 December 2008 are
set out in Note 27(d) to the financial statements.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five years is set out on page
128 of this annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are
set out in Note 24 to the financial statements.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors and management and shareholders
of the Company (within the meaning of the GEM Listing
Rules) has an interest in any business which competes or
may compete with the business in which the Group is
engaged.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company is committed to establish a good corporate
governance practices and procedures. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasis a quality
board, sound internal control, transparency and
accountability to all shareholders. Save as disclosed on
the Corporate Governance Report, the Company has
complied with the Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2008. Details of the Code adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on the page 10 to 19.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established audit committee with
written terms of reference. The primary duties of the audit
committee are to review, in draft form, the Company’s
annual report and accounts, half-year report, quarterly
reports and to provide advice and comments thereon to
the Board. The audit committee is also responsible for
reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process
and internal control of the Group. The audit committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Jin Guangjun, Mr. Law Kin Ho and Mr. Chan
Wai Fat. Mr. Jin Guangjun is the chairman of the audit
committee.

The audit committee has reviewed the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Company and
discussed with the Board the internal controls and
financial reporting matters, including a review of the
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2008.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors a written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Based on such confirmation, the Board considers
all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2008.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has complied
with the public float requirement under Rule 11.23 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Details of connected transactions are set out in Note 27
to the financial statements.

AUDITOR

CCIF CPA Limited (“CCIF”) was auditor of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2007 and held office
until 26 November 2008. Shu Lun Pan Horwath Hong
Kong CPA Limited (“HORWATH”") was appointed as
auditor of the Company by the Board to fill the casual
vacancy arising from the resignation of CCIF with effect
from 3 December 2008.

The financial statements have been audited by
HORWATH, who will retire and be eligible to offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be
submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting to
appoint auditor and to fix their remuneration.
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POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

Details of the significant post balance sheet event are set
out in Note 32 to the financial statements.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yu Ping
Chairman

11 March 2009
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT

/\@ Horwath

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA)
GROUP LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS S & D INTERNATIONAL
DEVELOPMENT GROUP LIMITED)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Aurum
Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) set out on pages 42
to 127, which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31 December 2008, the
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in
the circumstances.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Except for the limitation in the scope of our work as
explained below, we conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. However,
because of the matters described in the basis for
disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a
basis for an audit opinion.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

1) Limitation of scope — Assets classified as
held for sale and liabilities directly
associated with assets classified as held
for sale

As explained in Note 3(b)(i) to the financial
statements, due to the reconstitution of the Board
during 2007 and 2008, the Group is no longer able
to have access to certain books and records of the
Disposal Group (as defined in Note 9 to the financial
statements). Accordingly, we have been unable to
carry out audit procedures that we considered
necessary to obtain adequate assurance regarding
the completeness, accuracy, classification and
disclosures in respect of either the transactions
undertaken during the year ended 31 December
2008 and the related balances further detailed in
Notes 9 and 19 to the financial statements in
connection with the Disposal Group.
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Any adjustment found to be necessary in respect of
the matters set out in the above would have a
consequential impact on the amounts “Assets
classified held for sale” and “Liabilities directly
associated with assets classified as held for sale” as
recorded in the consolidated balance sheet, the
Group’s and Company’s net liabilites as at 31
December 2008 and the Group’s loss for the year
then ended.

Limitation of scope — Minority interests
and exchange reserve

As explained in Note 3(b)(i) to the financial
statements, the underlying books and records of
certain subsidiaries were not accessible by the
Group, and due to the incompleteness of the books
and records of these subsidiaries being made
available to us, we were unable to carry out
adequate audit procedures to satisfy ourselves that
minority interests and exchange reserve relating to
these subsidiaries in the consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 December 2008, the consolidated income
statement for the vyear then ended and notes
thereon were fairly stated.

Any adjustment found to be necessary in respect of
the matters set out in the above would have a
consequential impact on the minority interests and
exchange reserve as recorded in the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2008 and the
Group’s loss for the year then ended.

The prior year auditor qualified its opinion in respect
of the same limitation of scope in the auditor’s
report for the year ended 31 December 2007.
Therefore, the comparative figures may not be
comparable and any adjustments to the amounts
may have a consequential effect on the opening
balance of accumulated losses of the Group as at 1
January 2008, its loss for the year ended 31
December 2008 and related disclosures in the
financial statements.
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Limitation of scope — Carrying amount of
interests in subsidiaries and amounts due
from subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2008, included in the
Company’s balance sheet were interests in
subsidiaries of HK$1,000, stated net of an
impairment loss of HK$13,764,000, and amounts
due from subsidiaries of HK$15,674,000, stated net
of an impairment loss of HK$22,937,000. Due to
the scope limitations in respect of points (1) and (2)
above, we have not been able to satisfy ourselves
as to whether the impairment losses determined by
the Company’s directors against the carrying
amounts of such interests in subsidiaries and
amounts due from subsidiaries as at 31 December
2008, and in consequence the net carrying amounts
of the Company’s interests in subsidiaries and
amounts due from subsidiaries as at 31 December
2008 in the Company’s balance sheet and notes
thereon were fairly stated.

Any adjustment found to be necessary in respect of
the matters set out in the above would have a
consequential impact on the carrying amount of
interests in subsidiaries and amounts due from
subsidiaries as recorded in the Company’s balance
sheet, the Company’s net liabilities as at 31
December 2008 and the Company’s loss for the
year then ended.

The prior year auditor qualified its opinion in respect
of the same limitations of scope in the auditor’s
report for the year ended 31 December 2007.
Therefore, the comparative figures may not be
comparable and any adjustments to the amounts
may have a consequential effect on the opening
balance of accumulated losses of the Company at 1
January 2008 and its loss for the year ended 31
December 2008, its net liabilities as at 31 December
2008 and related disclosures in the financial
statements.
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4) Limitation of scope — Prior year audit
scope limitation affecting opening balances
and comparative figures

The opinion on the financial statements of the Group
and the Company for the year ended 31 December
2007 was disclaimed by the prior year auditor.
Details of the qualifications were fully explained in
the 2007 annual report.

Therefore, the comparative figures may not be
comparable and any adjustments to these figures
may have a consequential effect on the opening
balance of accumulated losses of the Group at 1
January 2008, its loss for the year ended 31
December 2008, the Group’s and Company’s net
liabilities as at 31 December 2008 and related
disclosures in the financial statements.

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION: DISCLAIMER ON
VIEW GIVEN BY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Because of the significance of the limitations of scope
described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph,
we do not express an opinion on the financial statements
as to whether they give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31
December 2008 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and as to whether the
financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

FUNDAMENTAL UNCERTAINTY RELATING
TO GOING CONCERN

As explained in Note 3(b)(i) to the financial statements,
the Group sustained a loss of HK$9,711,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2008. It had net current liabilities
and net liabilities of HK$6,995,000 and HK$14,864,000
respectively as at 31 December 2008. The financial
statements have been prepared by the directors on a
going concern basis, the validity of which depends on
the outcome of measures as detailed in Note 3(b)(ii).
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We consider that appropriate disclosures and estimates
have been made in the financial statements and our
opinion is not qualified in this respect.

SHU LUN PAN HORWATH 20th Floor, Central Plaza
HONG KONG CPA LIMITED 18 Harbour Road
Certified Public Accountants  Wanchai

Hong Kong

11 March 2009
Shiu Hong NG
Practising Certificate number P03752
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mEBEER
D2 paiipe eyt

2008 2007
“BEN\E —TT LA
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT  TAL

Notes (Restated)
ks (&e&E75)
Continuing operations BFEREXER
Turnover B 5 18,582 3,447
Cost of sales 85 & B AR (14,509) (2,668)
Gross profit EH 4,073 779
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (835) (241)
Administrative expenses ITHRH X (10,420) (4,997)
Loss from operations KB R (7,182) (4,459
Finance costs B & KA 7 (366) —
Waiver of amount due to a former  FE{TRIIR 3R TR IBIEE ¢
shareholder — 1,595
Loss before taxation from continuing 4 & & 2 % 2 KB F Al
operations E518 7 (7,548) (2,864)
Income tax Frig it 8 (147) —
Loss for the year from continuing BERKLEBREERFR
operations (7,695) (2,864)
Discontinued operations ERIEREETK
Loss for the year from discontinued B 4% |F 4% 4 2£ 7%
operations FEEE 9 (2,016) (2,523)
Loss for the year FEBE (9,711) (5,387)
Attributable to: IATALT B :
Equity holders of the Company RAAFRIERFAEA 10 (9,711) (5,376)
Minority interests LERREER - (11)
(9,711) (5,387)
Basis loss per share, in HK cents FRERERE GBIL) 13
Continuing and discontinued BERERIELSE
operations EYi (4.86) (2.69)
Continuing operations FIBICE T (3.85) (1.43)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial BEMIZMisFBA AT HEHET 2 —#H o
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

nEBEERER

At 31 December 2008
RZFFNF+ZA=1+—H

2008 2007
—EENFE —_TTLF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
okza FET FH&IT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEH 14 117 327
Deposits for acquisition of WK E A A
subsidiaries ZE & 15 5,370 22,710
. 5487 . 23,037
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables JE WBR 3 %
H & W R 17 11,491 633
Cash and cash equivalents HENBEESESEY 18 5,073 675
16,564 1,308
Assets classified as held for sale YAEBIELEEE 19 12,888 —
29,452 1,308
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables FEBR B %
H A FE 1 5k 21 8,679 9,753
Amounts due to former directors FEfNBIESHIE 27(b) - 14
Amount due to a shareholder FE AR 18 27(c) 97 —
Amount due to a former J& < AT B% 3R 5K 1E
shareholder 27(c) 450 5,032
Bank loan, unsecured mILHRITE R 20 - 14,980
Other loan payable, unsecured HimiEWMENER - 495
Tax payable FEFR IR 147 —
(9,373) (30,274)
Liabilities directly associated with By ABELEELE
assets classified as held for sale BEEBEBEz8E 19 (27,074) —
(36,447) (30,274)
Net current liabilities RBAEFE 699 __ (28,966)
Total assets less current liabilities EERE R AHEE (1,508) (5,929)

REPEEEER QA
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

HEBEERER

At 31 December 2008
RZZFEZNF+=_A=+—H

2008 2007
—BEN\E —TT5
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ik FH T FH& T
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Loan from a shareholder RERER 27(d) (12,210) —
Loan from a former shareholder BIEERE = 27(d) (1,146) —
Net liabilities EEFEE (14,864) (5,929
EQUITY i
Share capital A% 2 22 2,000 2,000
Reserves 5 (18,340) (9,314)
Equity attributable to equity ADNFEREBEEA
holders of the Company FE 1L RE 25 (16,340) (7,314)
Minority interests DB RER 1,476 1,385
Total equity (deficiency) FESAEE (B4 (14,864) (5,929

APBHRRENR_ZFZNAF=A+—H
BEEIHENMRETE-

These financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 11 March 20089.

EF

Director

EF

Director
The accompanying notes form part of these financial Bl ~ MicEBR A RER 2 — 25 o
statements.

44

Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited Annual Report 2008



BALANCE SHEET
BEERMEX

At 31 December 2008
R-ZBENAF+=A=+-8

2008 2007
—BENE —TTLF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
N3 FET FH&ETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets *RBEE
Interests in subsidiaries KRB AR 2= 16 1 1
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables FE UK B 30 % Eo b JE W 3R 17 15,844 11,634
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables JE {~F BR 3R % L At P 15 3K 21 9,335 11,243
Amounts due to former directors  FE B & B 1A 27(b) - 14
Amount due to a shareholder FERT AR R SR 1B 27(c) 97 Wi
Amount due to a former JF& 1t BT A% BR 5K 18
shareholder 27(b) — 608
(9,432) (11,865)
Net current assets/(liabilities) AB¥EE (8 FE 6412 (231).
Total assets less current EEHERARBAR
liabilities 6,413 (230)
Non-current liabilities *RBEE
Loan from a shareholder REE R 27(d) (12,210) —
Net liabilities EEFEE (5,797) (230)
EQUITY R
Share capital R A 22 2,000 2,000
Reserves ERE] 23 (7,797) (2,230)
Total equity (deficiency) AR (B4 (5,797) (230)

These financial statements were approved and authorised for A EREERN —_ZEETALEFE=A+—H

issue by the board of directors on 11 March 2009. BEE2f ERRETE-
EF EF
Director Director

The accompanying notes form part of these financial BEMI 2T AT ERK 2 — 5 o
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GERREREHR

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTZNF+_A=+T—HILFE

Share-based
compen- Accumul-
Share  Share Capital Capital General Exchange sation ated Minority
capital premium reserve surplus reserve  reserve reserve losses Sub total interests Total
&% -& EX ROMTE DERR

BE RHEER R EXER e i HiEE ZHER it B i

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEx TR TEx TER TEx FEx Téx FEx FEx TEx TE=n
(note 23)  (note 23) (note 23)  (note 23) (note 23)

(Biito3) (Wito3) (Wi#23) (Haes)  (Bates)

Balance at RZB2tF
1 January 2007 -B-Rz&8 2,000 30,224 - 15,090 2,927 (550) 1,742 (51,905) (472) 1,305 833
Total expense recognised ERRNERERL
directly in equity: Hy@eE:
Exchange differences arising on tranglation 2 E &SN B A 7
of overseas subsidiaries EECERER - - - - - (1,466) - - (1.466) 9t (1,879
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - - (6378)  (5376) (1) (6,387)
Total recognised (expenses)/ AEEERAL
income for the year (F%)/ A% - - - - - (1,466) - (6376 (6842 80 (6,762)
Lapse of share options BREXX - - - - - - (1742 1742 - - -
Balance at RZBBLE+=ZA=1-8
31 December 2007 288 2000 30224 - 15000 2927 (2016) - (55%9) (1314 1385  (5929)
Net income recognised ERNERER
directly in equity: WAFE:
Exchange differences arising on translation & E &M B2 7
of overseas subsidiaries EEZERER - - - - - (1629 - - (1629 91 (1,634)
Capital contribution by a shareholder in BRAEEER
the form of interest-free loans LB - - 2310 - - - - - 2310 - 2310
- - 2,310 - - (1,625) - - 685 91 776
Loss for the year FEBE - N . - - - - e em - @m
Total recognised (expenses)/income AEEERAL
for the year (Ax)/ A g - - 2310 B - (162) - Q7)) (002 91 (8,939
Balance at RZBENE+-A=1-8
31 December 2008 288 2000 30224 2310 15000 2927  (3641) —  (65250) (16,340) 1476 (14,864)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial BEMI 2 TR AT ERK 2 — 20 -
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

= A =
GERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2008
BHE-_TTZN\F+_A=+—HILFE

2008 2007
—EEBNF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
(Restated)
(#&E7)
Operating activities RETH
Loss before taxation: BB AT &S -
From continuing operations FREICE T (7,548) (2,864)
From discontinued operations BRI E T (2,016) (2,523)
Adjustments for: P EE
Depreciation of property, plant and W BELEETE
equipment 97 55
Write-off of property, plant and MEmE  WELRZE
equipment 178 —
Finance costs RPN 366 1,703
Allowance for impairment loss for trade & U BR SRR B 85 1B B
receivables - 57
Fair value adjustment on deposits for WEWNE AR Z
acquisition of subsidiaries e AFEAE 630 —
Waiver of amount due to a former &1+ BT A% 3R
shareholder RIBE#R R = (1,595)
Write-off of other receivables il 8 JE UK i 702
Operating cash flows before working BEELEHAI o LE
capital changes Remne (8,293) (4,465)
Increase in trade and other receivables JEUs BR Bk K
H b & Y FRIE A0 (7,857) (609)
Decrease in deposits and prepayments A& KT O 1,000 —
Increase in trade and other payables & 1~ BR 20 & E b FE 5 3R
1% 40 8,979 695
Decrease in amounts due to former FET AT E B FIER L
directors (14) —
Increase in amount due to a shareholder JE A IS B Rk TR A 0 97 -
Decrease in amount due to a former FE - B0 A% 3R FR B R 4
shareholder (3,282) —
Cash used in operations LEFARS (9,370) (4,379)
Interest paid BAFA (144) —
Net cash used in operating activities RETBHMARSTIE (9,514) (4,379)
REtEEEEREAT —2ENAEFH 4/



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

= A =
GEHRERER
For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE_ZTZNF+_A=+T—HILFE

2008 2007
—EEBNF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
(Restated)
(ET)
Investing activities RETH
Payments to acquire property, plant and BEWE BEK
equipment B ENE (65) (382)
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFMARESFH (65) (382)
Financing activities mMEES
Repayment to former directors AESEER - (1,370)
Advance from a director EERY - 4
Advance from a former shareholder BIIRER # - 1,595
Advance from a shareholder A% B S - 5,032
Loan obtained from a shareholder KEREZER 14,144 —
Net cash generated from financing METBHMEBESESR
activities 14,144 5,261
Net increase in cash and cash ReRESEZEYEMESE
equivalents 4,565 500
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning REFNZHRERELZEEY
of year 675 164
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes /N ERSE > & 11 11
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year REXRZ2HERREEEY 5,251 675
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRBESESEYERIN
cash equivalents
Cash at bank and in hand RITERRFERS 5,073 675
Cash at bank and in hand included in AT AERBELEEEY
assets classified as held for sale WRITEREFERS
(Note 19) (Htit19) 178 —
5,251 675

The accompanying notes form part of these financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 2% M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
(LA THIR)

ORGANISATION AND OPERATIONS

Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”)
(formerly known as “S & D International Development
Group Limited”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited liability
and its shares are listed (currently suspended) on the
Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Company’s registered office is located
at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands, and its
head office and principal place of business in Hong
Kong is located at Room 3707, 37/F, West Tower,
Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 16 October
2008, the name of the Company has been changed
from “S & D International Development Group Limited”
to “Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited”.

The principal activities of the Group during the year are
the provision of custom-made solutions and trading of
computer equipment, computerised smart sockets and
accessories.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all of the
new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) that are
relevant to its operations and effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. The
adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not
result in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting
policies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 2R BT AE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
(LA THIR)

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
STANDARDS (Continued)

The adoption of HK(FRIC) — Int 11 “HKFRS 2 —
Group and treasury share transactions”, HK(IFRIC) —
Int 12 “Service concession arrangements”, HK(IFRIC) —
Int 14 “HKAS 19 — The limit on a defined benefit
asset, minimum funding requirements and their
interaction” and HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Amendments
“Reclassification of financial assets” has no impact on
these financial statements.

At the date of authorisation of these financial
statements, the following HKFRSs were in issue but not
yet effective:

2.

RN RAEETER (&)

RMEE (BRMBREREZES
e) —REFIREIEEMBRE
A FH —KBREGRNO X
5] - BB (BBRVYBREREZR
Bg) —REBE12RIREEIE
ZH] BEE(AEHBEREZRE
Z8g) —2EFURIEEgH
HREI19E — REBMNEEZR
# HZEESERREELTBE]
R BB TR FE305 R BB M
HEERETRE (BRI EFHHE
CREE | HZSVBRRTESY
2

RERTBEZEMBRERZA B
BEHERMRERZEBERBRE
ERIWT

Effective
date
4% HH

50

HKAS 1 (Revised)
EB SR B (KIELT)

HKAS 23 (Revised)
BB ERIFE235 (KEBET)

HKAS 32 & HKAS 1 (Amendments)
EA QLR B R EIR (BT A)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 (Amendments)

Presentation of financial statements

MBHmEZER

Borrowing costs

f& & B A

Puttable financial instruments and
obligations arising on liquidation
BREACAGAESHIARERE

Cost of an investment in a subsidiary,
jointly controlled entity or associate

FRMBREEFERK P BN A FLRFE G E RE K
BB e ERIFE275R (BFTA) RANCIE & A VN

HKFRS 8
B RS E R B85

HK(FRIC) — Int 15

B (BBRMBRELREZED) —
B2 E155

Operating segments
EEDE

Agreements for the construction of real
estates

FiERERZ
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 2% M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
(LA THIR)

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.

STANDARDS (Continued)

RN BT ER (&)

Effective
date
4% B H

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
FEM B REERF25 (BT AK)

HKAS 27 (Revised)
B ERIE27 (BIEFT)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)
FBM B ®EERFE3H (KERT)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 13
B (BBRMERERELZE
B E13%

23

)_

HK(FRIC) — Int 16

B (BBRMBEHRERELE
ZEFE165

iz

)_

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17
BB (ERUMERERELZES) —
BREETHR

HK(FRIC) — Int 18
BB (BB HEHREREZER) —
ZEF18HR

2008 Improvements to HKFRSs that may
result in accounting changes for
presentation, recognition or
measurement

—EE\FEBHBEERA LW
L EEE N T ETE B2 T

I\ &£

Vesting conditions and cancellation
55 B R K s 8

Consolidated and separate financial
statements
fre K E R B B &

Business combinations

XA B

Customer loyalty programmes
BE A2

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign
operation
HMEINEEFRE

Distributions of non-cash assets to owners
MBEEADIKIERCEE

Transfers of assets from customers

BEEFMNEE

— HKAS 1, HKAS 16, HKAS 19, HKAS
20, HKAS 23, HKAS 27, HKAS 28,
HKAS 29, HKAS 31, HKAS 36, HKAS
38, HKAS 39, HKAS 40 & HKAS 41

— HKFRS 5

— BB ENFE1H BE S EAE
165% - HA LT ERIFE195 - BB GET
AERFE205 - BAE LT EAE23R - FH
BEFHERF27 BEA S ENSE
28%% - BB T ERIFE205 BELET
XERIE31R - BB S ERFE365 - &
BEETERIEI8Y BB LTERE
30%% - BB S ERBIFLEES
ET R FEA158
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2% M =E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETTHIR)

2.

52

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
STANDARDS (Continued)

Effective date

(0

(i)

)

)

Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

Annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

Annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

Annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these new HKFRSs is expected
to be in the period of their initial application.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

Basis of preparation of financial
statements

These financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified
for certain financial instruments which are stated
at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 2% M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETTHIR)

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of financial
statements (Continued)

(0

State of books and records maintained by
certain subsidiaries

The financial statements have been prepared
based on the books and records maintained
by the Company and its subsidiaries.
However, after the reconstitution of the Board
during the years ended 31 December 2007
and 2008 the Group no longer has access
to certain of prior years’ books and records
of SJTU Sunway Information Technology Co.
Ltd., SUNV (Beijing) Century Information
Technology Co., Ltd., Beijing Guoxin Sunway
IT Co, Ltd., Shanghai Sunway Century IT
Co., Ltd. and Fujian Multi Language
Translation Service Co., Ltd., the subsidiaries
of the Company and Beijing Advanced
Information Storage Technology Co., Ltd., an
associate of the Company. The present
Board tried to obtain assistance from the

former directors to locate the relevant
information and documents. However, the
present Board lost contact with the

responsible former directors and were
therefore unable to have access to the
relevant information and documents within
the time constraint in the preparation of
these financial statements. Hence, only
limited books and records of these
subsidiaries are accessible by the present
Board. In view of the foregoing, no
representations as to the completeness of
the books and records could be given by the
present Board although care has been taken
in the preparation of the financial statements
to mitigate the effect of the incomplete
records. The directors have in the
assessment of the Group’s assets and
liabilities taken such steps as they considered
practicable to establish these assets and
liabilities based on the information of which
they were aware and have made provisions
and adjustments as they considered
appropriate in the preparation of these
financial statements.
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S %5 R 2% M =E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETTHIR)

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

54

(b) Basis of preparation of financial
statements (Continued)

U

(i)

State of books and records maintained by
certain subsidiaries (Continued)

On this basis, the directors believe that no
significant liability has been omitted from
these financial statements.

Going concern

In preparing these financial statements, the
directors of the Company have considered
the future liquidity of the Group in view of its
net liabilities as at 31 December 2008.
During the year, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company defaulted on the repayment
of bank loan. The said subsidiary was
subsequently disposed after year end. Details
are set out in Note 9.

In order to strengthen the capital base of the
Group and to improve the Group’s financial
position, immediate liquidity and cash flows,
and otherwise to sustain the Group as a
going concern, the directors of the Company
have adopted the following measures:

()  The Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with a third party
to sell the Disposal Group (as defined
in Note 9) on 2 March 2009;

(i)  The directors of the Company are
considering various alternatives to
strengthen the capital base of the
Company through various fund raising
exercises, including but not limited to, a
private placement, an open offer or a
rights issue of new shares of the
Company;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 2= BT 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETTHIR)

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of financial
statements (Continued)

(i)

Going concern (Continued)

(i)  The directors of the Company continue
to take action to tighten cost controls
over various operating expenses, and
are actively seeking new investment and
business opportunities with an aim to
attain profitable and positive cash flow
operations; and

(iv)  The controlling shareholder continues to
provide financial support to the Group.

In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, in light of the measures taken to
date, together with expected results of other
measures in progress and the continual
financial support extended by the controlling
shareholder, the Group will have sufficient
working capital for its current requirements
and it is reasonable to expect the Group to
return to a commercially viable going
concern. Accordingly, notwithstanding that
the Group incurred a consolidated net loss
of HK$9,711,000 for the year ended 31
December 2008 and had consolidated net
current liabilities of HK$6,995,000 and
consolidated net liabilities of HK$14,864,000
as at 31 December 2008, the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that it is
appropriate to prepare these financial
statements for the year ended 31 December
2008 on a going concern basis.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

56

(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of financial

statements (Continued)

(i) Going concern (Continued)

Should the Group be unable to continue to
operate as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to restate the values
of assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for any further liabilities which might
arise and to reclassify non-current assets as
current assets. The effects of these potential
adjustments have not been reflected in the
financial statements.

(c) Basis of consolidation

The financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The results of subsidiaries acquired and disposed
during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions between
Group enterprises are eliminated in full on
consolidation. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment on the asset transferred.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 2% M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
(LA THIR)

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are identified separately from the
Group’s equity therein. Minority interests consist of
the amount of those interests at the date of the
original business combination and the minority’s
share of changes in equity since the date of the
combination. Losses applicable to the minority in
excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s
equity are allocated against the interests of the
Group except to the extent that the minority has
a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities in which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating
policies, so as to obtain benefits from their
activities. In assessing control, potential voting
rights that presently are exercisable are taken into
account.

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s balance sheet at cost less any
impairment loss. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

58

(Continued)

(e) Non-current assets (and disposal groups)

classified as held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are
classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use.
This conclusion is regarded as met only when the
sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal
groups) is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected
to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
previous carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 2% M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
(LA THIR)

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost
or valuation of assets, over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at each balance sheet date,
with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis. The
principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements

HEMENR I

Computer and other equipment

- PrET g

Furniture and fixtures
EAREE

Motor vehicles
=

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
(LA THIR)

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

60

(9)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 2= BT 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETTHIR)

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating wunit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on trade date where the purchase or sale of a
financial asset is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the investment within the
timeframe established by the market concerned,
are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction
costs, except for those financial assets classified
as at fair value through profit or loss, which are
initially measured at fair value. These financial
assets are subsequently accounted for as follows:

() Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables
that have fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market are
classified as loans and receivables. Loans
and receivables are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment. Interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate, except
for short-term receivables when the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETTHIR)

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

62

(h) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair
value through profit or loss, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at each balance
sheet date. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that as a
result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been impacted.

Objective evidence of
include:

impairment could

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or counterparty; or

— default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation; or

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 2= BT 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
(LA THIR)

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate, where
the effect of discounting is material.
assessment is made collectively where
financial assets carried at amortised cost
share similar risk characteristics,
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the

collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which have
been determined had no impairment

been recognised in prior years.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETTHITR)

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

64

(h) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors included in trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade debtors directly
and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset and of allocating interest income over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset, or where appropriate,
a shorter period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 2% M =E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETTHIR)

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire; or it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

Financial liabilities and equity instrument
issued by the Group

(1)

(i)

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
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(AETTHIR)

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

66

(i)

Financial liabilities and equity instrument
issued by the Group (Continued)

(ii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either
financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss or other financial liabilities. All the
financial liabilities of the Group are
catergorised as other financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings,
are initially measured at fair value, net of
transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, with interest
expense recognised on an effective vyield
basis.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognises financial liabilities

when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 2% M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
(LA THIR)

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

(k)

()

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and deposits held at call with banks, and
other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash
and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 ¥R 2% M 5F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
(LA THIR)

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

68

(m) Provisions

(n)

A provision is recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle the obligation, and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the balance sheet date,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of
the receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will
be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %5 2= BT RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
(LA THIR)

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Contingent liabilities (Continued)

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the financial statements. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so
that the outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

(o) Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

() Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in the income statement
because it excludes items of income or
expenses that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %5 2= BT 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETTHITR)

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

70

(o) Taxation (Continued)

(i)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %5 2= BT RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETTHIR)

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o) Taxation (Continued)

(i)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the
balance sheet date, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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S %5 ¥R 2% M 5F
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(AETTHIR)

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

72

(Continued)

(p) Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each Group
entity are presented in the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates
(“functional currency”). For the purpose of the
consolidated financial statements, the results and
financial position of each Group entity are
expressed in Hong Kong dollar which is the
functional currency of the Company, and the
presentation currency for the consolidated financial
statements.

ltems included in the financial statements of the
Company are measured using the Hong Kong
dollar, the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (the
“functional currency”). The financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars.

In preparing the financial statements of the
individual entities, transactions in currencies other
than the entity’s functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At each
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 2% M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
(LA THIR)

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)

FTEGHEER (H)

(p) Sh¥& ()

(p) Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise except for
exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur,
which form part of the net investment in a foreign
operation, and which are recognised in the
exchange reserve within equity and recognised in
profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations are expressed in
Hong Kong dollar using exchange rates prevailing
at the balance sheet date. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuated significantly during the period, in which
case the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are classified as equity and
transferred to the Group’s exchange reserve. Such
translation differences are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

74

(q) Employees’ benefits

(i)

(i)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Shared-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a
share-based compensation reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the binomial model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the options, the total estimated fair value of
the options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q) Employees’ benefits (Continued)

()

(i)

Shared-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to profit or loss for the year
of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based compensation reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share-based compensation
reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to accumulated losses).

Related parties

For the purposes of the financial statements, a
party is considered to be related to the Group if:

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to
control the Group or exercise significant
influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint
control over the Group;
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

76

(r)

Related parties (Continued)

(i

(i)

(vi)

the Group and the party are subject to
common control;

the party is an associate of the Group;

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent, or a close family member of such an
individual, or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in () or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of
such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party
of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that individual in
their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 2% M =E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETTHIR)

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is

reduced for estimated customer returns,

rebates

and other similar allowances and exclude value
added tax or other sales related taxes.

(i)

(i)

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of products is
recognised when the Group entity has
delivered products to the customer, the
customer has accepted the products and
collectability of the related receivable is
reasonably assured.

Custom-made solutions

When the outcome of a custom-made
solution contract can be estimated reliably,
revenue from a fixed price contract is
recognised using the percentage of
completion method, measured by reference
to the percentage of contract costs incurred
to date to estimated total contract costs for
the contract.

When the outcome of a custom-made
solution contract cannot be estimated reliably,
revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that it is probable will
be recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2% M =E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETTHIR)

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

/8

(t)

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the
Group that is engaged either in providing products
or services (business segment), or in providing
products or services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), which is
subject to risks and rewards that are different
from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting system, the Group has chosen business
segment information as the primary reporting
format and geographical segment information as
the secondary reporting format for the purposes
of the financial statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated
on a reasonable basis to that segment. For
example, segment assets may include inventories,
trade receivables and property, plant and
equipment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets,
and liabilities are determined before intra-group
balances and intra-group transactions are
eliminated as part of the consolidation process,
except to the extent that such intra-group
balances and transactions are between group
entities within a single segment. Inter-segment
pricing is based on similar terms as those
available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost
incurred during the period to acquire segment
assets (both tangible and intangible) that are
expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets, interest-bearing loans,
borrowings, tax balances, corporate and financing
expenses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 2% M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
(LA THIR)

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
the directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(@) Impairments

In considering the impairment losses that may be
required for certain of the Group’s assets which
include property, plant and equipment, other
assets and investments in subsidiaries, recoverable
amount of the asset needs to be determined. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the net
selling prices and the value in use. It is difficult to
precisely estimate selling prices because quoted
market prices for these assets may not be readily
available. In determining the value in use,
expected cash flows generated by the assets are
discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to items such as the
level of sale volume, selling price and amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount
that is reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on a
reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of items such as sale volume, selling
price and amount of operating costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 ¥ 2% M 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
(LA THIR)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

30

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(@)

(b)

Impairments (Continued)

Allowance for impairment of doubtful debts are
assessed and provided based on the directors’
regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation of
collectability. A considerable level of judgement is
exercised by the directors when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of
each individual customer. Any increase or
decrease in the allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts would affect profit or loss in future
years.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives, after taking into account the estimated
residual value. The Group reviews annually the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any.
The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3R 2% M =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETER)
5. TURNOVER 5. &XH
Turnover represents the revenue from provision of BIBRETIREERATR W
custom-made solutions, and the sales value of goods mhkEEEmoHEEE (KRR
sold after allowances for goods returned. The amount EBE) - FAN REEHEER
of each significant category of revenue recognised in ZEEREBERKZSB|OT
turnover during the year is as follows:
2008 2007
—EENE T LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FATT
Trading of computer equipment and EETEMERELREGT
accessories 16,437 2,247
Provision of custom-made solutions BT IR T R 2,145 1,200
18,582 3,447

SEGMENT REPORTING

Business segmental information of the group for the
years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 is shown as
below.

Primary reporting format — Business
segments

The Group comprises the following main business
segments:

Continuing operations

() Custom-made solutions
To develop and implement custom-made solutions
which are specifically designed and developed for
the specific needs and requirements of a particular
customer.

(i) Computer equipment and accessories
Trading of computer hardware and software, and

computerised smart sockets and related
accessories.

REPEEEER QA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 ¥R 2% M 5F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
(LA THIR)

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. DEHSE (&)

Primary reporting format — Business FTEREEX —¥XK5E (&)
segments (Continued)

Discontinued operations ERIEBEXT
() Information localisation services ) 158X RFE

REBE LEEANMCRT -

To provide translation and information localisation
services.

For the year ended 31 December 2008 Bz-_ZEZENFE+=-HA=+—H

L+FE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
=%
Trading of
computer
Provision of equipment Information
custom-made and localisation
solutions accessories services Consolidated
RETRHER EEEK 58
AR REREGE XeEBRH )
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TERT TERT TER
Revenue from external customers KB INERE 7 Wiz 2,145 16,437 - 18,582
Segment results NEEE (1,057) 1,794 (12) 725
Unallocated operating income AR ERAR
and expenses 53 (7,919)
Loss from operations ZEEE (7,194)
Finance costs BB R AR (2,370)
Loss before taxation BF A E R (9,564)
Income tax Fri8 % (147)
Loss for the year FEER (9,711)
Capital expenditure RN - - -

Depreciation of property, plant

and equipment

e

Fair value adjustment on deposits JEEHT B A F] &

for acquisition of subsidiaries

2AFEHAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 2% M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETIR)
6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. DEHE (HFE)
Primary reporting format — Business FERERRX —EXBE2EB(E)

segments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Continued) BE-_ZFEENF+=-A=t+—H
IHEE (&)

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations

g4It

FECSEXER REER

Trading of
computer

Provision of equipment  Information

custom-made and localisation
solutions accessories services Consolidated

RUTHER BEEERK =)
FR RERE# KRB me
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TER TER TER TERT

At 31 December 2008 R-ZZEENF
+=ZA=+-8H

Segment assets NREE 189 9,233 - 9,422
Unallocated assets KOBEE 25,517
Consolidated total assets SREEQE 34,939
Segment liabilities NEBEE - 7,359 1,186 8,545
Unallocated liabilities KOMEE 41,258
Consolidated total liabilities ARG eE 49,803
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 2R BT RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETTHR)

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. DEE®E(EFE)
Primary reporting format — Business FTEREEX —¥XK5E (&)
segments (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE-_EZE+tHF+=-HA=1+—H
IEFE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BaIE
SEEEET BEEH
Trading of
computer
Provision of equipment Information
custom-made and localisation
solutions accessories services  Consolidated
RETRARR BEEN =)
AR REREG  AHR® e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET THET TET TET
Revenue from external RENARBR 2 WS
customers 1,200 2,247 — 3,447
Segment results DEEE (1,409 (259) (428) (2,096)
Unallocated operating ADBEEWA MY
income and expenses (3,183)
Loss from operations KEER (5,279)
Finance costs BB R (1,703)
Waiver of amount due to a BN RIIRE R IBEZR R
former shareholder 1,595
Loss before taxation BE A E R (65,387)
Income tax TSt —
Loss for the year FEEBE (6,387)
Capital expenditure BAHY — — —
Depreciation of property, ME BMEMNRBITE
plant and equipment — - -
Allowance for impairment EWRFREBERE
loss for trade receivables - - 57
Write-off of other receivables i #5 £ th & g 3% — — 702

34
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %% 3R 2% M 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETHR)

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. DEHE (E)
Primary reporting format — Business FERERRX —XBE2B(E)

segments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Continued) BE_ZFEZEtLtF+=-HA=t+—H
I FE (&)

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations

B&IE

Trading of
computer

Provision of equipment Information

custom-made and localisation
solutions accessories services  Consolidated

REFTEBER BEEEK EEs)
AR REREH RS e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAT THAT TAET FAET

At 31 December 2007 RZEZLE+-A
=t+-A

Segment assets NEEE 313 38 - 351
Unallocated assets AOBEEE 23,994
Consolidated total assets ~ HFABELE 24,345
Segment liabilities NEEE 1,722 298 1,113 3,133
Unallocated liabilities APEEE 27,141
Consolidated total liabilities 44 & & # % 30,274
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 ¥ 2% M 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
(LA THIR)

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. 7HEH®E (E)
Secondary reporting format — Geographical RERERR —HESE
segments
In presenting information on the basis of geographical 2Ry EERE DBl
segments, segment revenue is based on the ENEPZMAEMEE D - Mo
geographical location of customers, whereas segment BEREAFAXARUAEE 2R
assets and capital expenditure are based on the fE @&l o
geographical location of the assets.
The following is the analysis of the Group’s turnover by TRBIAEERBEFZME
geographical market based on geographical location of WRRMBR TS E D 2 EERD
customers. T -
The PRC Hong Kong Other Asian Countries Consolidated
H BB Hitt MBI R o)
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“SENE “TITLE SRENF “TTLF SRENEF “TTLE SRENE “TTLE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FHE TR FER  TER  TER  TER  FAR  FEn
Revenue from external RENIREFZ
customers Yoz 2,145 250 15,548 950 889 2,247 18,582 3,447
The PRC Hong Kong Other Asian Countries Consolidated
H BA HithTEMER =E
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENF ZTTtF ZBENF ZTTLF ZBEN\F ZTTLF ZBENF ZTTtF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TExT THET TEx THET THER FAT TExT TERT
Segment assets SEEE 385 380 34554 23,965 - — 34930 24345
Capital expenditure BEARHY = = 65 382 - - 65 382

36

Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited Annual Report 2008



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3R 2% M =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETER)
7. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION FROM 7. BFEAKEEBZBRBAEE
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Loss before taxation from continuing operations is REREEB 2R HAIEEE
arrived at after charging: IR
(a) Finance costs: (@) MEHA:
2008 2007

—EBEN\E ZTTLHF
HK$000  HK$'000
TR TAT

(Restated)
(&&EY)
Interest expense on financial liabilities #E @Bz IEZE A FE
not at fair value through profit or cRAEEZMBERAX
loss
— Interest on other loan wholly — AR AFRNBHE
repayable within five years EZHMERFE 144 —
— Imputed interest on interest-free —KRERRBERZE
loans from a shareholder EAlPs 222 —
366 —
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ b) EIRK(BEEEMS
remuneration (Note 11)): (PFftaE11)) -
2008 2007
—EENE T LF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries, wages and allowances e TE KERL 3,577 2,091
Contributions to retirement benefits RIKAE AT 8 5K
schemes (Note 24) (K1 7t24) 94 58

3,671 2,149

REFHEEARAT —TENEEH 37



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 ¥R 2% M 5F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
(LA THIR)

7.

8.

38

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (Continued)

7. BEAKEEBZBRBAEE
(%)

(c) Other items (c) HitEH
2008 2007
—EENE —ZTTtHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Auditor’s remuneration ZE DB & 480 438
Depreciation of property, plant and M- -BERKEBTE
equipment (Note 14) (Kiat14) 97 55
Allowance for impairment loss for JEW AR K 2 R EEE
trade receivables (Note 17) BE (Hiz17) - 57
Fair value adjustment on deposits for UWEHB AR £ 2
acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 15) NEBERE (BiE15) 630 —
Write-off of other receivables i1 58 H b JE UK - 702
Net foreign exchange loss PE 5 B 1BF R - 1
Write-off of property, plant and WiEME  BE RFRE
equipment 178 —
INCOME TAX 8. m#B#H
(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement @ IMWAFEEERXIUERSE

represents provision for Hong Kong profits tax
calculated at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits for the year. No provision for Hong Kong
profits tax has been made for 2007 as the Group
did not earn profits subject to Hong Kong profits
tax for the year ended 31 December 2007.

For the years ended 31 December 2008 and
2007, no provision for PRC income tax has been
made as the Group did not have assessable profit
subject to the income tax rules and regulations in
the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 2% M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETIR)
8. INCOME TAX (Continued) 8. FB#H (&)
(o) Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the by FEMEBEHEGHEBEBZHE
accounting loss as follows: J/u N
2008 2007
—E2ENF —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Loss before taxation bR 7% A ES 18 (9,564) (5,387)
Taxation calculated at the rates HERRNERAEERER
applicable to losses in the jurisdiction ZEBZHMERAE
concerned 1B (1,548) (952)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible A 1545 % 2 B 75
for taxation purposes =4 632 636

Tax effect on unused tax losses not REBRZARAHRIE

recognised BRMETE 1,063 316
Income tax for the year FREER 147 —
Refer to Note 26 for deferred taxation not AR ZELERE &
recognised. 2 B 5526 ©
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETTHR)

9.

90

LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 2 March 2009, the Company entered into an
agreement to dispose of its entire equity interest of
Besto Investment Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
and its subsidiaries and associate (collectively the
“Disposal Group”). The Disposal Group engaged in the
business of providing information localisation services.
In accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 5 “Non Current Assets Held For Sale and
Discontinued Operations”) (“HKFRS 5”) issued by the
HKICPA, the business segment of information
localisation services was required to be presented as
discontinued operations and the related assets and
liabilities are classified as held for sale and liabilities
directly associated with assets classified as held for
sale, respectively.

The loss for the year from discontinued operations is
analysed as follows:

CRIEBEEXBZFEBR

R_EZNF=ZA-H ARIE
VYERNEEEZ2ENREBE R A
Besto Investment Limited &2 & M B
AREBEE R (ABAIHES
BzrikE - HESEKEE
HESAMCRBEES - BEBEFE
HAMRAEEB BB B RS
ERESRE [ FBIEHEZIERBE
EReRIEREEBI(EETK
WwEERIELS]) - 5 B A b AR
B2 EBDBEAEREINRBERLEKE
LEE FHEERBEREAUD AT
REBEEHEEENRREY BIFIEH
EEEEERBZBE-

2

ERIEREXEB 2FEBRADMN
LN

2008 2007

—EENE —_ZTTLF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FEIT

Revenue I = - —
Administrative expenses (Note) TBREX (Bi) (12) (820)
Finance costs B & R AN (2,004) (1,703)
Loss before taxation and for the year MBI REEERE (2,016) (2,523)

Note: No allowance for impairment loss for trade and other
receivables is included for the year ended 31 December 2008
(2007: HK$760,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 2= BT RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETHR)

9. LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

The cash flows attributable to the discontinued
operations are as follows:

9. CRULEREXBZFEFRE

(%)

EREREXHRERSRER
SR

2008 2007

—EENFE ZTTLF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FERT FHET

Cash inflows/(outflows) from: TABEEZRERA
SOl

Operating activities R E (6) @)

Investing activities REEH - 77

Financing activities A& EE - —
Net cash outflow e HFRE (6) (2)

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

10.

Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
includes a loss of HK$7,711,000 (2007: loss of
HK$861,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

10. AR A EBHFBEAEBLEER

ARG BFEBEARLEERE
—I8 7,711,000 L (ZEZT L F -
861,000 /L) 2 BB - E R A A A
LM BERERARE -
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S %5 ¥ 2% M 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(A TTR)

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 11. EEM £
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the GEM BIEAI %R EMBEEEDNT
Listing Rules and section 161 of the Hong Kong EHEIGHEIEECESME T ¢

Companies Ordinance is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2008 B8Fz-—_EZENE+=-_H=+—H
IHFE

Salaries,
allowance Contributions
and to retirement

Directors’ benefits in benefits
fee kind schemes Total
E e A
)=-4:' 953 EBHRER
EExHe BEYFZ B R ot
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FERT THERT THERT
Executive Directors BITESE
Cheung Yu Ping (note 4) RKFF (Hi24) - 414 6 420
Chan Chi Chiu Henry Bk & B
(note 4) (1 724) - 354 6 360
Lee Ah Sang (note 6) F 4 (K:26) - 188 3 191
Henry Dicker Yee R
(notes 2 & 5) (Hia225) - 642 7 649
Tan Shu Jiang (note 5) BT (B:25) - 5 - 5
Tinna Chan Yee (notes 1 & 5) & XIB (4131%5) - - - -
Sana Bakhtiar Ahmed Sana Bakhtiar Ahmed
(notes 1 & 5) (Hat1k5) - - - -
Independent Non-Executive B I FHITES
Directors
Jin Guangjun (note 4) T REE (Mit4) 56 - - 56
Law Kin Ho (note 4) Bz (M) 56 - - 56
Chan Wai Fat (note 4) [R1E % (it4) 56 - - 56
Chan Cheong Yee REE
(notes 3 & 5) (K1 5t3%5) 32 - - 32
Ronald Gary Hopp Ronald Gary Hopp
(notes 3 & 5) (H1i23%5) 2 - - 2
Yip Tai Him (notes 3 & 5) EWH (WiF3K5) 32 - - 32
234 1,603 22 1,859
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 2= BT RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
(LA THIR)

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 11. EEfM < (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2007

BE-_Z22+LtHF+=-A=1t—H

IEFE
Salaries,  Contributions
allowance  to retirement
Directors’ and benefits benefits
fee in kind schemes Total
e
=3NS RIKE T
EEMe EPMzE FTEIf R mEt
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAET FAT FTAT
Executive Directors HITESE
Henry Dicker Yee RER
(notes 2 & 5) (K1it2k5) — 516 5 521
Tan Shu Jiang (note 5) BT (M:5) - 12 — 12
Tinna Chan Yee (notes 1 & 5) &R K48 (477155) — — = -
Sana Bakhtiar Ahmed Sana Bakhtiar Ahmed
(notes 1 & 5) (K1 at15) — - - -
Sze Wai, Marco (note 7) S & (Kit7) - = - -
Shang Guan Bu Yan (note 7) & % (f157) - = - -
Chen Si Gen (note 7) bR BAR (K 727) = o - -
Independent Non-Executive By E${TE =
Directors
Chan Cheong Yee bR E &
(notes 3 & 5) (Bt a£3/55) 46 5 - 46
Ronald Gary Hopp Ronald Gary Hopp
(notes 3 & 5) (H1a£3/25) 3 - - 3
Yip Tai Him (notes 3 & 5) R (M 7#3K5) 46 - - 46
Wang Tian Ye (note 8) T X0 (K7:2£8) T - - -
Wang Bin (note 8) T8 (#a28) T — - -
Xu Shi Hong (note 8) TREFSL (B7228) i — - -
95 528 5 628
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 ¥R 2% M 5F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETTHIR)

11.

94

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

Notes:

1. Appointed on 1 February 2007
2. Appointed on 8 August 2007
3. Appointed on 27 March 2007
4. Appointed on 14 July 2008

5. Resigned on 14 July 2008

6. Appointed on 2 Oct 2008

7. Resigned on 1 February 2007

8. Resigned on 27 March 2007

For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007, no
emoluments were paid to the Company’s directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office and no fee or any other
emolument was waived by the Company’s directors.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 2% M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(LA THIR)
12. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 12. BEEFHF AL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, AEBREEaHATESR =%
three (2007: one) are directors whose emolument is TEELF—R)EESE EB
disclosed in Note 11. The aggregate of the emoluments THBAMENEE - BIMEE
in respect of the other two (2007: four) individuals is as FMAT(ZEZEELF:UEL)Z W
follows: BT
2008 2007
—EENF T LHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Salaries and other emoluments Hae hEMiE 518 1,025
Contributions to retirement benefits R ORAE 5T 8
scheme 13 36
531 1,061
The emoluments of two (2007: four) non-director NREBHEMMZ(ZEZE+F
individuals with the highest emoluments are within the ZIBEESHIFEETATZHMENTF
following band: A T&EE :
2008 2007
—EENFE T tF
Number Number
AH A
HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000 =7 7T £1,000,0007% 7T 2 4
There were no amounts paid or payable during the Bz -_ZEZEN\FRER_EELF+=
years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 to the five BA=+—HAULEE tTESE
highest paid employees in connection with their loss of NFRBEZEFATZTAEE
office, or inducement to join. ERREBMBMERBFMNAR
SR HEE -
mEt@EEEsRAA —2EAEEg 95



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 2R BT RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETTHR)

13. LOSS PER SHARE

96

(a) Basic loss per share

(b)

0

(i)

From continuing and discontinued operations

It is based on the loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company of approximately
HK$9,711,000 (2007: HK$5,376,000) and the
weighted average of 200,000,000 (2007:
200,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during
the year.

From continuing operations

[t is based on loss for the year from
continuing operations of approximately
HK$7,695,000 (2007: HK$2,864,000) and the
weighted average of 200,000,000 (2007:
200,000,000) ordinary shares is issued during
the year.

Diluted loss per share

Diluted loss per share is not presented as there
were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2008 and
2007.
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13. ERE#E
(a) EREXREE
() FBERORIFASES

BREABBIIZEAR
A=A ABGERE
9,711,000 L (= T F
+ 4 : 5,376,000/ JT)
X & M200,000,0000% &
BOTEBAR(ZEE L
% 200,000,0008%) Z
MEFHEEHEHE -

(i) FFEEEEF

BREARNEBEBNDEFE
KEXEBz2FEEB
7,695,000 L (= & &
+  © 2,864,000/ JT)
X & M200,000,0000% &
BOLTRAR(ZZEZ £
% 200,000,0008%) 2
MEFHIEEHEHE -

(b) BEREBEFER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %% 3R 2% M 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(LA TTHIR)
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ME - -BERXHE
Computer
Leasehold and other Furniture Motor
improvements equipment and fixtures  vehicles Total
HENE EER
BRIB HitR#E HEREE AE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER FER TER TER
The Group r&
Cost K
At 1 January 2007 R-ZZ+%—-H—H 512 2,306 1,206 833 4,857
Additions NE 267 57 58 - 382
At 31 December 2007 R-_EE+&+-_A=+—H 779 2,363 1,264 833 5,239
Additions NE - 61 4 - 65
Written off i (267) — - - (267)
At 31 December 2008 R-ZZENE+-R=1+—H 512 2,424 1,268 833 5,037

Accumulated depreciation:  ZitirE:

At 1 January 2007 N-ET+E-A—H 512 2,306 1,206 833 4,857
Charge for the year (Note 7)  KEEHTE (f7#7) 36 6 13 - 55
At 31 December 2007 ZZT+FE+ZA=T—H 548 2,312 1,219 833 4912
Charge for the year (Note 7) ZLKEE%% (H1i7) 53 24 20 - 97
Written off on disposal HE 7 s (89) - - - (89)
At 31 December 2008 R-BENE+=-A=+—8 512 2,336 1,239 833 4,920
Carrying amount: RAE:
At 31 December 2008 RZEZN\F+=ZA=+—8 - 88 29 - 17
At 31 December 2007 R-_EE+&+-A=+—H 231 51 45 — 327

BEFTEEEARAT —TENEEE 97



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 ¥ 2% M 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
(LA THIR)

15. DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARIES

98

(i)

For the year ended 31 December 2008

On 16 May 2006, Surplus Trade Investment
Limited (“Surplus Trade”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an equity
transfer agreement with Mr. Wong Chi Wai (“Mr.
Wong”), an independent third party. Pursuant to
the agreement, Surplus Trade agreed to acquire
the entire equity interest of First Preview Limited
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“First Preview Group”) for a consideration of
HK$42,000,000. First Preview Group is engaged
in hotel business.

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the
Group paid an aggregate amount of
HK$10,000,000 which was retained as a deposit
for the acquisition of First Preview Group. As
certain conditions set out in such equity transfer
agreement were not fulfilled, the transaction were
not completed. According to the terms of the
transfer agreement, Mr. Wong should refund the
deposit of HK$10,000,000 to the Group.

During the year, HK$1,000,000 was refunded to
the Group. An amount of HK$3,000,000 has been
agreed to be refunded in 2009 and is included in
trade and other receivables. The remaining
balance of HK$5,370,000 stated at fair value by
discounting at market interest rate will be refunded
by December 2010 and the fair value adjustment
of HK$630,000 has been charged to profit or loss
(Note 7).
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15. RIBHB AR 25l €

(i)

BE_2TN\E+=A
=Et-HALFE

RZEEXFRA+H -
KARZEEWNEB QA
Surplus Trade Investment
Limited ([ Surplus Trade ) &2 58
3 % = J3Wong Chi Wai’t &
(IT'Wong4t A& 1) 8] 32 — 1 R #
HEHE-RBREBEZBZE
Surplus Trade[d & U H&First
Preview Limited &z H Kf B 2 &
(% 78 [ First Preview® B |) 2
2 #P i # - X & 542,000,000
7 JT ° First Previews B #t =
B JE 7 o

HE-_ZZXF+ = A
=+ HLEFE - AEEX
& #£10,000,00078 T * 58
2 1R 2 /E Uk BEFirst Previews
Bril® MR ZRESEE
BEME B TG4 HKRE
KR PWRTER - RIEE
iE 1 & 2 1& 3 Wong st & &
| 7 ££ @ iR [8110,000,0005% 7T
ZE & e

FRN - XEEE ERMD
1,000,000 7T & 5 E # €
7 = Z ZF 1 4 iR [3,000,000
BT % BBR R A E B
KN E A fE WK o 12 T 5 A
RETHIIRI AR FESER
2 $ %85,370,0007%8 T #& 1 =
T-—ZTF+ A ZAERE "
630,000 7T 2 A F 18 3 &
EEEmEP R (eE7) -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3R 2% M =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
(LA THIR)

15. DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

15. WIEKMBARA 28T € (&)

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2007 i) B2=—FF+tF+=-A

On 30 March 2005, the Group entered into an
equity transfer agreement with Mighty Wish
Services Limited (“Mighty Wish”) and an
independent third party (the “Equity Transfer
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Equity Transfer
Agreement, the Group agreed to acquire the entire
equity interest of both Mighty Wish and Shanghai
Ruijin  Translation Company Limited (“Translation
Company”) from this independent third party for a
consideration of HK$19,500,000 subject to the
conditions that the Translation Company would be
reorganised as a wholly owned subsidiary of
Mighty Wish or with prior written consent of the
Group, under the PRC laws and regulations, that
the Translation Company would be legally and
validly converted into a wholly owned foreign
enterprise within 90 days after the execution of
the Equity Transfer Agreement.

During the year ended 31 December 2005, the
Group paid an aggregate amount of
HK$12,710,000 which was retained as a deposit
for the acquisition of Mighty Wish and Translation
Company. The transactions would not be
completed by the long stop date as the conditions
set out above were not fulfiled. Such deposit
remained outstanding as at 31 December 2008
and 2007 and recoverable from the independent
third party under the terms of the Equity Transfer
Agreement.

As at 31 December 2008, the deposit of
HK$12,710,000 was reclassified to assets held for
sale as it is an asset of the Disposal Group (Note
19). The balance as at 31 December 2007
included the deposit of HK$10,000,000 as stated
in Note 15(i).

REPEEEER QA

=+—HLEEE

R—ZEERF=A=+H"
7K & [ B Mighty Wish Services
Limited ([ Mighty Wish |) &—%
B E = R MR EE
m(IREEEHE]D - RIE
KEEZEGZ ~A5ERE
% X {819,500,000/% Tt [A] 7% J8
3 8 = 75 4 EEMighty Wish &
EBmEBEERAA(L
BIHEDEIRAER &
HhhREBMENEEMRR
Mighty Wishz 2 & ki B Q&) -
IRESAEEELEE@A
B ESmERESBRE
ERBRA REFTREEE
% % 18908 M & )= B B ih 82
FRINEBEDE-

REBEZE_ZEZETRF+ A
=+—BLEFE AEEX
& 12,710,000/ T * X 58
2 R & E I BEMighty Wish }2
EBmEZF BN Lt
BHITEEN RHTEE
REABAEX - R_ZFZT
NER_ZEELF+ A
=+—H B#EFTDHRK
Bl -ERBERESEDZ

IR ATAB L E = F U E -

MR eBLHESECEE -
EHR=—_ZEZENF+=A
=+ — H'E it 5] &
12,710,000 T E EF D E A
RIELEEE (M:F19) - »¥
—EE+FE+-R=+—H
2 &R B RN 50 AT 2 7T
410,000,000/ JT °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 ¥R 2% M 5F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AAETIR)
16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. RMIB ARl 2 &
The Company
b NN
2008 2007
—EENE T LHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
Unlisted shares, at cost K ETRR - BB 13,765 13,765
Less: Impairment loss B R EE B (13,764) (13,764)

1 1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %5 2= BT RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
(LA THIR)

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at

31 December 2008 were as follows:

16. RITB LRz (&)

R-EENE+=A=+—0 %

NRATEMBRARZHBTOAT :

Proportion of ownership interest

FRE Rz B
Particulars of
issued and
Country of paid up capital Group’s Held by Held by
incorporation and debt effective the the
Name of company and operation securities interest Company subsidiary Principal activity
ERTRAR
R & BRAE AR BB rEE YN F 8 A H)
ARER REAR BHoHEE BEEREEzZ FEEE FiEEs TEXR
Besto Investment Limited* The British Virgin US$14,833 100% 100% — Investment holding
Islands (“BVI")
Besto Investment Limited* RERABRES 14,8332 7T 100% 100% — BREER
Surplus Trade Investment BVI US$1,000 100% 100% — Investment holding
Limited
Surplus Trade Investment EEERRES 1,000 7T 100% 100% — REER
Limited
SJTU Sunway Information PRC RMB25,000,000 100% — 100% Provision of
Technology Co., Ltd.* translation
services and sales
of general
software
RAREFR GER)E BRIl H B AR 100% a 100% 124 B0 R BR 7% I
BRAE 25,000,0007C tHE BBt
SUNV (Bejing) Century PRC RMB6,000,000 100% — 100% Provision of
Information Technology Co., translation
Lta* services
ARt 42 (bR ) {5 Bl =y AR 100% — 100% ¥ 8372 R 75
BRAE" 6,000,0007T
New Champion International BVI US$500 100% - 100% Investment holding
Ltd.”
New Champion International ~ RE#HBRES 5002 7T 100% — 100% IEER

Ltd.”

REPEEEER QA
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Bt %5 2R BT RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETTHITR)

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

16. RITB LRz (&)

FrEREREB
Particulars of
issued and
Country of paid up capital Group’s Held by Held by
incorporation and debt effective the the
Name of company and operation securities interest Company subsidiary Principal activity
ERITRAR
= AR 3L K% B ALK B rEH AxpwE HELE
NEIEE REFAR BHEoHFE BEEEZ FEEE FiEEE TEER
Mainca International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% — 100% Software
development
business and
trading of
computer
equipment
EINBEEER AR e 1T 100% — 100% IR EEB R
S & D Management Limited Hong Kong HK$10 100% — 100% Centralisation of
administrative
expenses
S & D Management Limited & 107 7T 100% — 100% EFEEITHAX
S & D Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% — 100% Provision of instant
on-screen hotel
entertainment
programme
S & D Enterprises Limited o 17T 100% — 100% 124 BN 2 BB 5
IREEFE K
Winner Zone Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% — 100% Provision of instant
on-screen hotel
entertainment
programme
KREBRRA b 17T 100% — 100% $2# BD A 86 OB 5
IREEFE 5
Beijing Guoxin Sunway IT Co., PRC RMB2,000,000 51% - 51% Provision of
Lta.” translation
services
b R B 88 2= 15 B BT H B AR 51% — 51% IRELE =R
BRAGE 2,000,0007T
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PEE L

(o ers sk

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16. RfIB AT 2z (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

FrEREREB
Particulars of
issued and
Country of paid up capital Group’s Held by Held by
incorporation and debt effective the the
Name of company and operation securities interest Company subsidiary Principal activity
ERITRAR
= AR 3L K% B ALK B rEH AxpwE HELE
NEIEE REFAR BHEoHFE BEEEZ FEEE FiEEE TEER
Shanghai Sunway Century IT  PRC RMB5,000,000 90% - 90% Provision of
Co., Ltd.* translation
services
Babi=3 7 e g SR N X} H B AR 90% — 90% IRt # = RS
BRAGE" 5,000,0007T
Fujian Multi Language PRC RMB5,000,000 75% - 75% Provision of
Translation Service Company translation
Limited* services
BRZEWERBERAF HH AR 75% — 75% iR EE R
5,000,0007T
Forever Trend Development Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Administration
Limited
EERBRAF o 1T 100% 100% THER
Max Honour International Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Trading of
Limited computerised
smart sockets
and related
accessories
SHRERBR AR BE 178 7T 100% 100% BEEEMIEE
¥ B I AR B e 1

* To be disposed of pursuant to an agreement entered on 2 March 2009. * BRER-_ETENFEF=ZACBELZ2HEETT
HE -
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B 7% 3R 2R Y =
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETTHIR)

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

17. BB WK B 7R &% EL 2 BB WK

The Group The Company
E b NN

2008 2007 2008 2007

—E2ENF —FTTLF ZBENFE ZTTLHF

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FH& T FHERT FHET

Trade receivables FE I% BR 3X 8,126 11,308 - —
Less: Allowance for B REREAE

doubtful debts — (11,308) — —

8,126 — — —

Other debtors H A & W R 30 30 30 30
Amounts due from NG

subsidiaries (Note) I8 (H1EE) - — 15,674 11,370

Loans and receivables BER R EW 8,156 30 15,704 11,400

Deposits and prepayments 3] & M FEN I 3,335 603 140 234

11,491 633 15,844 11,634

Note: The amounts due from the subsidiaries (net of accumulated
impairment losses of HK$22,937,000 (2007: HK$20,500,000) are
unsecured, interest free and has no fixed repayment terms.

()  The average credit period to the Group’s trade
debtors is 60 days.

1 04 Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited Annual Report 2008
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 2% M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETTHIR)

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

The movements in the allowance for doubtful

. BURR R R H b FE K

(%)

(i)

FARKRBEY (BERTE

debts during the year, including both specific and REHBEKD )M
collective loss components, are as follows:
The Group
KE
2008 2007
—EBENFE —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FA 7T
At beginning of year F 1] 11,308 10,515
Uncollective amount written off it 38 A& WYt [©] Fx 18 (11,308) —
Additional allowance for JiE U AR OB E B B R AN A - 57
impairment losses (Note 7) (Hiat7)
Exchange adjustment bE 5 3 2 - 736
At end of year Fax = 11,308

At 31 December 2008, the Group’s trade
receivables of HK$Nil (2007: HK$11,308,000) were
individually determined to be impaired. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as
follows.

)

RZEENF+_A=+—
H - AEBEYEEBRER (=
T T + 4 : 11,308,000/ 7T )
WERNEETARBREBE - AEHE
VTELZEEHRFTEEWE
e

FE W BR K 2 BREC AT 20T

The Group
AEE
2008 2007
—EENF —TTLH
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T

Within 30 days
31 to 60 days
61 to 90 days

S0 AR
31260H
61290H

2,356 —
3,772 —
1,998 —

8,126 —
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Bt 7% 2R BT AE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AATIR)
17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. EWRFA R H b FE W
(Continued) (#&)
(v) The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are vy WEMERXE —HEREE
neither individually nor collectively considered to WIEZ RN ZBREE DT
be impaired is as follows: N
The Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENF —TTA
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHETT
Neither past due nor impaired mae K BB E 6,128 -
Less than 1 month past due # g A —1E A 1,998 —
8,126 —

The trade receivables relate to a major customer
that has a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of this balance as there have not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balance
is still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over this balance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 2% M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETER)
18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18. RERBETEEY
The Group
rEH
2008 2007
—BEN\F —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Cash and bank balances: e RIBITHER
— Hong Kong dollars — BT 5,073 502
— Renminbi (included in assets classified — A R¥ (155 B {E
as held for sale) (Note 19) HEEE) (K E19) 178 173
Cash and cash equivalents He MRS EEY 5,251 675
At the balance sheet date, the Group’s cash and bank REFEH  AEEUARE (AR
balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted BDetE2RERBITEHAEA
to RMB156,000 (2007: RMB162,000). The RMB is not KR #156,000t (ZZEZE+F: AR
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under #162,0007T) - AR TR BB X
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations BMEHMER. A BREPER
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of 2 CHNE B IR R ) R (A E - &
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted fERNEEEARAE) ANEBEEE
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks BB EEITINE R 2 |RIT
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business. BARB LB BEMER -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETTHIR)

19. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/ 19. 5| AB{EHELE HH A

LIABILITIES DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH FELEEEEEZERBAZE
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE =
As explained in Note 9, the assets and liabilities of the BN ORISR RZZTEENF
Disposal Group were classified as held for sale and +ZA=+—H HEKEBZEE
liabilities directly associated with assets classified as FEEORMNARBIELEEER
held for sale respectively as at 31 December 2008. B ABELEEEEREBZ
They are presented as follows: BE 2MT
2008
—BENEF
HK$’000
THET
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 18) ReERBSEEY (HiF18) 178
Deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries — WEHE R F 2514 (1:215)

(Note 15) 12,710
Assets classified as held for sale AEEEHEERRE 12,888
Trade and other payables JE A< BR SR N B A JE A 3R 10,587
Bank loan, unsecured (Note 20) mILABITER (B 2220) 15,960
Other loan payables HMENERK 527

Liabilities directly associated with By ARELHEEE

assets classified as held for sale EEEHECEE 27,074
Minority interests DEBRRER (1,476)
Exchange reserve B X #E (3,641)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% 3R 2R Y =
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETTHIR)

20. BANK LOANS

20. SRITER

The Group
KE
2008 2007
—BENE —TEELHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Bank loan (unsecured) RITER (EBER) 15,960 14,980
Reclassified to liabilities directly & aﬁf ) *E REY|RBFELE
associated with assets held for sale BEEEHRBEB EBE
(Note 19) (K15#19) (15,960) —
- 14,980
The unsecured bank loan matured on 30 May 2005 EEARTERR_ZEZTAFAHA

and the Group defaulted on the repayment of such
bank loan. The unsecured bank loans of
RMB14,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,960,000) (2007:
RMB14,000,000 (equivalent to HK$14,980,000)) has
been overdue and is bearing interest at 0.7965% (2007:
0.7965%) per month. The lender has not agreed to
waive its right to demand immediate payment. The
lender has obtained a court ruling to enforce the
repayment of the loan plus the interest due. The
unsecured bank loan is guaranteed by a subsidiary of a

=+HIE BEREEERZERT
EUAZ%?}ZOETE&?%%E ,\ZB)\}\E
#14,000,0007T (46 2 715,960,000
BILXINZEZETLFAREK
14,000,0007T (48 % 714,980,000/
7C)) B &L EIH - TR A F) %0.7965
B (T L4F:07965F )t 8 -
BERAYARRAEREZEERNEFE
R WEBEEHFBES

SEEZEINPEFERMNIE - &

former shareholder.

ERBTETBABRRZMBE R
TEH R -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2% M =E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AATIR)
21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. EEIFEEMEST
The Group The Company
RE b NN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF —Z2T+F ZBENFE T LHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHERT FET FET FHET
Amounts due to subsidiaries &t [ B A 7 5k I8 - — 8,136 10,162
Trade creditors FETBRE X 7,359 395 - —
Bank loan interest payable 81T & 3 fE (S FI & - 3,526 - —
Other creditors and accrued E b fEf 3 &
charges EsrE A 1,320 5,832 1,199 1,081

Financial liabilities measured & 44 K RNt & 2

at amortised cost TREE 8,679 9,753 9,335 11,243
The amounts due to the subsidiaries are unsecured, FERHIT B R A RIB T EIRIE - R B
non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms of B EEFEERE - FTAEMNERRK
repayment. All of the trade and other payables are MEMENREBEBER —FAE
expected to be settled within one year. Included in 18 o FE A AR AR I B At JE (< R B 45 B
trade and other payables are trade creditors with the NESGEFR  ERGHEEBZERED
following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date: T -

The Group
rE
2008 2007

—BENF —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TBR

Within 30 days 30E KA A 1,978 —
31-60 days 31E60H 3,169 —
61-90 days 61290H 2,212 —
Over 360 days 360H A £ — 395

7,359 395

1 1 O Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited Annual Report 2008



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 2= BT 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(LA TTHIR)
22. SHARE CAPITAL 22, fg A
2008 2007
—EENF —EETLF
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
B3 & B 8B BRHOHA Gk
’000 HK$’000 000 HK$’000
F & FERT TR TET
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of % ™ {80.0178 JT
HK$0.01 each 2R 4,000,000 40,000 4,000,000 40,000
Issued and fully paid: 22317 K& E
At end of year F 4R 200,000 2,000 200,000 2,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 2R BT AE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETTHIR)

23. RESERVES

(@) Reserves of the Company

23. f#1E

(a)

NN R

Share-based

Share Share Capital compensation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
B’ 5 &
BEx RGEE EXFEE B ok 4 RZItE B mat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHEL FTAT FTER FHET FHEL FHET
At 1 January 2007 R-ZT+E—A—A 2,000 30,224 - 1,742 (33,335) 631
Total expense recognised HERERBER
directly in equity: M A%
Loss for the year FEEE — - - - (861) (861)
Lapse of share options B A% A KK — - - (1,742) 1,742 -
- _ - (1,742) 881  (861)
At 31 December 2007 RZZETLF
+=-A=+—8 2,000 30,224 - - (32,454)  (230)
Total expense recognised EENERERL
directly in equity: X B :
Capital contribution by a BERAEBER
shareholder in the form of ZEE
interest-free loans - - 2,144 - - 2,144
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - (7,711)  (7,711)
- — 2,144 - (7,711) (5,567)
At 31 December 2008 RZZTEZENF
+=-A=+—H 2,000 30,224 2,144 - (40,165) (5,797)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (b) EEZMEEREN

(i) Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman

Islands,

the funds

in the share premium

account of the Company are distributable to
the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off
its debts as they fall in the ordinary course
of business.

1 1 2 Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited Annual Report 2008
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 2= BT 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETTHIR)

23. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the capital
contribution by a shareholder in the form of
interest free loans. The amounts are
estimated by discounting the nominal value
of their non-interesting bearing loans to the
Group at current market interest rate for
similar financial instruments.

Capital surplus

Capital surplus mainly represents the waiver
of loans from the shareholders of Besto
Investment Limited, which was contributed
as part of the capital to SJTU Sunway
Information Technology Co., Ltd.

General reserve

According to the articles of association of
the subsidiaries in the PRC, the subsidiaries
are required to set up a general reserve and
the transfer to this fund are at the discretion
of the subsidiaries. This fund can be utilised
to acquire property, plant and equipment, to
increase current assets and may be
converted into paid-in capital. Transfers from
this fund are subject to approval by its board
of directors.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt within
in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 3(p).

23. &t (&)

(b) EEZMHEEREN (&)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

REPEEEER QA

BXw#E

EXAFERERRAZ B
ERzEtE - BAK
FTAREETHBEERZ
HEZBAULERTAEZ
BTSN ERFRGEE -

BA R

& KA # £ Z $EBesto
Investment Limited i% 52 24
REFR BBEBERIVE
AH R KEEULR)E
BREMAR AR 2D
EE o

—RFE

Rz BB ARz E
BERZMAA - NEB QA
AR —RER ALK
oY 8~ B B 15 8 1 5RR
ExwmEo-xELAH
EBEMWE BENIR
W EBMRBEELA
BROSERELR -BZ
o 8 3R R A 1F %
FHBARcEZSH
HETR - T AIMEE ©
EL#E

X R R E s I
SN R T Ty
EZHBEREE &

fit 188 79 AR 4% & 7 BT 523 (p)
SETBRERE -

—zz g 113



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 2R BT AE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETTHIR)

23. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(vi) Share-based compensation reserve

The fair value of the actual or estimated
number of unexercised share options granted
to employees of the company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share based payments in Note

3(a)(ii).
(vii) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2008 and 2007, the
Company did not have any reserves available
for distribution to equity holders of the
Company.

24. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in
the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate
in a defined contribution retirement scheme (the
“Scheme”) organised by the PRC municipal government
whereby the PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute
to the Scheme for the retirement benefits of eligible
employees. Contributions made are calculated based
on 19% to 34% of the payroll costs of the eligible
employees. The PRC municipal government is
responsible for the administration of the Scheme. The
PRC subsidiaries are not liable to any retirement
benefits beyond its obligation to contribute.

For providing retirement benefits to its employees in
Hong Kong, the Group has set up a mandatory
provident fund (“MPF”) scheme which is available to all
Hong Kong employees. The Group’s and the
employees’ contributions to the MPF scheme are based
on 5% of the relevant income of the relevant employees
in accordance with the requirements of the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance and related
regulations. Contributions made to the above schemes
by the Group amounted to approximately HK$94,000
(2007: HK$58,000) for the year. No other scheme for
the retirement benefit is participated by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 2% M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(LB TTHIR)
25. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25. URAEEZROXS
TRANSACTIONS

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) of the Company
was adopted on 25 November 2003 for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants,
including the executive directors of the Company, who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.

The Board
discretion,

of Directors of the Company may, at their
grant option to the eligible participants
including any employees, directors, suppliers,
customers, advisors, consultants, joint venture partners
and any shareholders of any members of the Group or
any invested entities or any holders of any securities
issued by any members of the Group or any invested
entities. The maximum number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
options granted under its Scheme or any other share
option scheme adopted by the Company must not
exceed 30% of its issued share capital from time to
time. The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 20,000,000
shares, being 10 per cent of the shares in issue unless
it is approved by shareholders in a general meeting of
the Company. The maximum number of shares issuable
under the options to each eligible participant in any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares in issue
unless it is approved by substantial shareholder in a
general meeting of the Company. Any grant of options
under the Scheme to a director, chief executive,
management shareholder or substantial shareholder of
the Company or any of their respective associates must
be approved by independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who
or whose associate is the proposed grantee of the
options). Any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company or to any of their respective associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares in issue and with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
in any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting of the Company.

REPEEEER QA

AKARR-_TEE=F+—AF_-+H
HE & — 18R EE (Z:
2] BEEMEAEEEL 2K
EHERMZzAEERSEALRMH
HERER  ERBELRQTRT
S

ARABEEEARNBEMEERSE
HATELBERE BEEAE
B Ex5 #fED TP BH-
BHER AEPERELAIEE
EEHEKEARKEMNKEETR Y
ERBRRIAEB ML E QA
HEMEEERBMBETEANES
ZEAFEA BREZTEHIAR
a) B 2 F o] H Ath BE AR R T B IR
2 BT BB R RE 1T {0 B AT BE B
TZARNGBRAOEE  RETFB
WD EITRA 230% © RIKZ
BT & R AN & B ) H RS AR R T
BB TREZCHEBEREEITE
RAREETZIRODBEE LTS
#A8 #820,000,000% + B 2 # 1T &K 19
Z210%  BRIERARBIREARE &
KRR R AL RIIERER c REMR + =
EAEE REBEBREIRSZE
ER2EHALTETZROESH
BERABEETRHD 21% - K IE
RARAIBRRERSE ELKFTERR
BEBIER R - RIBZETEIRAR
AEE -FETHAE EBER
RAETERRAFESTACHE
AR L BN E - WEASE I IENTT
E5(TEREABLEBEAR
BEREEZZABRAZEBIIENTT
BE) 0 c NMEM+ =@ A HMA -
MARNBEEREBEXBILIFHNIT
EERREZEE2AMBEAR
oz AR iR e EITR
M01%RBE (REEHBH K
M mEE ) BBESEEET 13
ARARNRIBRRERE FEREH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 R 2% M =E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETTHIR)

25. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25. URAZEHE2BROXS (&)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 business days from the date of the offer of
grant of the option. The consideration for a grant of
options of the Company is HK$1.00. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determined by
the Board of Directors.

The exercise price of the share options is determined
by the Board of Directors providing that the exercise
price of the share options shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares on GEM as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations on the
date of the offer of grant, which must be a business
day; (i) the average closing price of the shares on GEM
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
the offer of grant; and (i) the nominal value of the
shares.

At 31 December 2006, the number of shares of the
Company in respect of which options had remained
outstanding under the Scheme of the Company was
8,000,000, representing 4% of the shares of the
Company in issue at that date. These share options
lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2007. No
share option under the Scheme was granted during the
years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 2% M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
(LA THIR)

25.

26.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The number and weighted average exercise prices of
share options are as follows:

25. UBRAGEHE 2RO Z (&)

BEARHE 2 BUE R NHE T 91T (E (B
m

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise of exercise of
price options price options
InkEF g BRE NETH fE e i
TEE B 1TEE #H
Outstanding at the R E ) HRITE
beginning of the
year - - HK$0.22 8,000
0.22 7T
Lapsed during the year £ A5k 4k - - HK$0.22 (8,000)
0.22 7T

Outstanding at the end RELR i KITE
of the year -

DEFERRED TAXATION NOT RECOGNISED

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of tax losses of HK$22,161,000 (2007:
HK$15,711,000) as it is not probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be
utilised. The Group’s tax losses of HK$15,395,000
(related to the Disposal Group) will expire in five years
from the year the tax losses were resulted and
HK$6,766,000 do not expire under the current tax
legislation.

The Company had no significant potential deferred tax
assets and liabilities for the years ended 31 December
2008 and 2007 and at the balance sheet dates.

26. = KRRz IE LB R

MAREETHESESEHBRERR
FomAABAIELERIBEEE WA
& B 3 3L A I8 B3 1822,161,00008
T (ZZEZ L4 :15,711,0007 7T )
BREEHBEE AKBZHIB
/&5 815,395,000/ JT (2 H & & B
EB) BB EEEEACFER
HFERNER 6,766,000 TTIEIRTT
M EGI TR BIER °

BE_TTNFR_ZTTLF+
AZ+—RALEFEERREER K
N A A AR E KRB R E TR R

BETHEEARAT —TENAEEE (17



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% 2R BT AE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
(LA THIR)

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries,
which are related parties of the Company, have been
eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in
this note. Details of transactions and other related
parties are disclosed below.

(@) During the year, the Group paid rental expenses
of HK$407,000 (2007: Nil) to a related company.
The spouse of Mr Cheung Yu Ping, a director of
the Company, is a director of the related company.

()  Amounts due to former directors/a former
shareholder were fully repaid during the year.

(¢) Amounts due to a shareholder/a former
shareholder are unsecured, interest free and has
not fixed repayment term.

(d Loans from a shareholder and a former
shareholder are unsecured, interest free and not
repayable before 31 March 2011 and 24 January
2011 respectively. The loans were stated at fair
value as of the balance sheet date which is
estimated by discounting the nominal value of the
loans at current market interest rate of similar
financial instruments.

(e) The remuneration of directors as disclosed in Note
11 and other members of key management during
the year was as follows:

27. BEALIRS

ARRRHEBBAR (REARAZ
HEAL)HAZRZIERGZEEKRE
R YERAMEARE -
GREMBEALZFBREN
T o

@ AEBEERFRM—MHEEZE
N Al % F £407,0008
T(ZFFLF: ) A2
RAEERFYF 2 REBAEZLZHE
BRAIZESE-

b)) ENAESHRRKELD
RERES -

© FERBREHRE 2 HOEA
W %8 BT EE T
g o

d BEERAIBRREZERAER
B 2B RDRBAR-E
——F=A=Z=+—B k=%
——F— A -+ BEREE-
EHEREREEHEEH
NFEFNE R FEARAEK
HAEERENEBR T A ZHT
MR RFTIMEE -

e MFFBEEZFRNESEH
TREMBEZEE AR Z M
TR

2008 2007
—BENE T LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET

Short-term benefits = EIE A 2,908 1,319
Post employment benefits Bt 12 12 A 52 27
2,960 1,346
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S %5 3 2% M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETER)
28. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 28. KEHELH
The Group as lessee AEBEERBEABEA

2008 2007
—BENF —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
THR  TBE

Minimum lease payments under operating E AR AR X 7 K &R E

leases recognised as an expense in RIEMEE MR
the year 1,068 522
At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding ReEsE g KEBRETI AR K
minimum commitments under non-cancellable operating EHENEKAEYNZZERE&AE
leases, which fall due as follows: ZEEBBE RO
2008 2007
—BREN\E —TTLHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FAET
Within one year —F R 110 661
After one year but within five years —FRBBRFERN - 110
110 771
The Group is the lessee in respect of a property under AEBREEHEYMEZEABEA -
operating lease. The lease typically runs for an initial ME— RS FHEME 7[R
period of two years, with an option to renew the lease BEEVTEEMEGRREELD -
when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases EMTEREHAES -

includes contingent rentals.
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S %5 ¥R 2% M 5F

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
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29. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 20. EXEBER

The Group’s primary objective when managing capital is
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with the
level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts,
which include bank and other borrowings, cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company, comprising share capital and
reserves.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The gearing ratio at the year end was as follows:

AEEEEERAZETERAMNEZR
EAEEAFELE BEATEHR
IR B B ¥R Ko 5 B At A 25 40 Y
Fwm K Mg o A B IR IR A K
FETEMNMRGER RIAGHE
RAREHBERE -

AEBZEARRBEREGR  HE
BRERROTAEMEE R kB
FEVMRARBEDTHEARNE
e (BRBRARHE) -

AEEREBESRILREREER
BE NHEESBEKFERY
BAGR 2 B4 & - BEsE R
FElRROEEF  NEEXRHFER
RSP 2 Mg R ARE - KREE
NEeRAEREEBACEERESR
RIRAE o

RERZERBELERMT

2008 2007
—EBEN\E —ZTTLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT FET

Debts B 30,390 20,521

Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY (5,251) (675)
Net debts B %58 25,139 19,846
Equity (deficiency) (AL (14,864) (5,929)

Net debts to equity ratio

B 5 R B bt K

N/A FER N/A TER

1 20 Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited Annual Report 2008



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 2% M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
(LA THIR)

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments in the normal course of the Group’s
business are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk
and currency risk.

These risks are limited by the Group’s financial
management policies and practices described below.

(@) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. Management has
credit policy in place and the exposure to this
credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
the event of the counterparties failure to perform
their obligations as at 31 December 2008 in
relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated balance sheet after
deducting impairment allowance. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at each
balance sheet date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 30. MBEMRER

EAKEREXRHBET ALK
EemMIAMELAZIEZERE
REERR RBESER  FX
Rk N B R o

AREBEFEBIATHBEEEBRE R
18 Pl sk 4z Bl ix F B

(a) FERR

AEBEZEERRIERA
JEU BR N N E b R UK -
BEERBEERR A&HE
FEEERAZ ZEERRE -

WX ZEFREBITER =
ZENE+A=+—RHA
HEROCHEATMEEZE
T rRAAKEEMEEZ&RA
FERRAGAEERMER
Pratiex & & @& E MR E
BEBERZEEME - SEEE
ERE AEEEEEEZ
KNEEFIBEEEEEER
M EEUERREMEER
FFo ARERBERENZ & T1F
Yo Bl g BE 75 o b oh - AR E
NEEEE B =B EE R
BHEHK A WE TR A
FE 4R Bt 0K M B 2 FRIE F
RHVBAEEE © Bk - NQA]
E=xRR AKEZEER
BE R

RETHEEARAT —TENEFE (21



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 ¥R 2% M =E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETTHITR)

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Group has a
concentration of credit risk as 100% (2007: nil) of
the total trade receivables was due from a selling
distributor. The maximum exposure to credit risk
without taking account of any collateral held is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the balance sheet after deducting
any impairment allowance. The Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose
the Group or the Company to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other receivables are set out in Note 17.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 3 2% M =E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
(LA THIR)

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the balance sheet date of
the Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates currently at the balance sheet date) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company can be
required to pay:

30. HEARER (&)

(b)

RBEEER (F)

TERFIWNTAEE KA R
ZEMBEREERZHT
RIREEBE DERERTLN
ABERERE (BREMF]
WA EREFE2F B FRIAKN
RERBCRREHEERZR
THMERFE)RAEERAR
AR ER 2 &xF A

The Group rEH
More than
Total More than 2 years
contractual Within 1 1 year but but less
Carrying undiscounted year or on less than than
31 December 2008 amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years
BAARTE —FREH ZR-F ZIRERF
—BREN\F+=A=1+—H REE RERELE JREXR BL/AWE BIREF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THEx TERT TET TET TET
Trade and other payables [EERZ R
H At & 1+ 5K 8,679 8,679 8,679 - -
Amount due to FE IR R F IR
a shareholder 12,307 14,241 97 - 14,144
Amount due to a former &S B A% E IB
shareholder 1,596 1,750 450 - 1,300
Liabilities directly B AEBELE
associated with assets BEEE R
classified as held for ZEBE
sale 27,074 27,074 27,074 - -
49,656 51,744 36,300 - 15,444
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S %5 ¥R 2% M =E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
(LA THIR)

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 30. B ERERE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBEESRAMR (F)
The Group (Continued) KEE (&)
Total contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or on
31 December 2007 amount cash flow demand
BEJOARTEAR —FRIH
—“EZ+F+-A=+—H RHEE PRELE FIREK
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FETT
Trade and other payables e R AR EAD
FERT R 9,753 9,753 9,753
Amounts due to former FEfFRIE A
directors 14 14 14
Amount due to a former JE{5F AT % R FR0B
shareholder 5,032 5,032 5,032
Bank loan, unsecured mILFRITER 14,980 16,984 16,984
Other loan payable, unsecured ] 4 $ 48 & {<f
BX 495 495 495
30,274 32,278 32,278
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

30. HEARER (&)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBEESRAMR (F)
The Company A7 |
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 year but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
31 December 2008 amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years
BRIARTER —FREH EZR—F ZRME
—EEN\FE+ZHA=+-—H REE ReRELE HRER BL2RAWE BLREF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHR FHX  FER  TAR  TEx
Trade and other payables EAERR K
H R 9,335 9,335 9,335 - -
Amount due to a shareholder & {<t i% 5 32X I8 12,307 14,241 97 - 14,144
21,642 23,576 9,432 - 14,144
Total
contractual Within 1
Carrying  undiscounted  year or on
31 December 2007 amount cash flow demand
EERIARITE —FAIEH
—EE+F+-_A=+—H FHE Ren=Egs I EK
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FATT FA&TT
Trade and other payables FENER R EhE
(NN 11,243 11,243 11,243
Amount due to former AT A E S8
directors 14 14 14
Amount due to a former & A<F B I R F 0B
shareholder 608 608 608
11,865 11,865 11,865
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %% ¥ & M =t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(LA THIR)

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
its borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group
to fair value interest-rate risk. The Group’s bank
borrowings is bearing interest at 0.7965% per
month. Details of the Group’s borrowings have

been disclosed in Note 20.

(d) Currency risk

As most of the Group’s monetary assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
and the Group conducted its business transactions
principally in Hong Kong dollars during the year
ended 31 December 2008, the Group experiences
only immaterial exchange rate fluctuations. The
Group considers that as the exchange rate risk of
the Group is not significant, the Group did not

employ any financial instruments for
purpose.

(e) Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31

December 2008 and 2007.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %5 2= BT RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

(AETTHIR)

31. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as recognised at 31 December
2008 and 2007 may be categorised as follows:

. EREERSBMABZOE
BME

AREBR-_ZZENEFR-_FTETL
FT-_A=1t—"H®R Z/i\vaﬂéf
ENMNERAGBZEREAEIOER
IWTNIER -

2008 2007
—EENFE —EETLF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T T
Financial assets cRMEE
Loans and receivables (including cash ERRLRERTG (BERS
and bank balances) MRITH ) 34,676 23,684
Financial liabilities cRas
Financial liabilities measured at RBHERKAAEZ TR
amortised cost B & 49,656 29,416

32. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On 2 March 2009, the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third
party to dispose of 100% equity interest in Besto
Investment Limited for a consideration of HK$1. The
Group will have a gain of approximately HK$12,020,000
from the disposal.

33. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of the discontinued operations, certain
comparative figures have been adjusted or re-classified
to conform with changes in disclosures in the current
year.

REPEEEER QA

32. #EHEEHE

RZTEENF=ZA=-H &N A H
—EBBUE=ZFAFILEBEWHZE A
K 818 7t i &Besto Investment
Limited 2 & #B AR 2 #E 25 © AN & B %
& 18 H & ¥ 15 412,020,000/ TT
U z5 o

33. LREF
HRERIEREXEH2BE FT

ttf%(%ﬁ%uﬂﬁjziéﬁﬁ“*ﬁu
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FIVE-YEARS FINANCIAL

ETEHNBERE

SUMMARY
For the year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=t—-HLEE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
“BRNFE —TTLF ZTERF ZTTRF —TTNE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
FHET FET FET FET FET
RESULTS E
Turnover ] 18,582 3,447 715 3,764 13,949
Loss before taxation bR 7% A B 1B (9,564) (5,387) (10,966) (39,453) (25,984)
Taxation TR 18 (147) — — (6) —
Loss for the year FEEIE (9,711) (5,387)  (10,966)  (39,459)  (25,984)
Attributable to: LA AT FEfL
Equity holders of the ZANYNESIE > £
Company =H A (9,711) (5,376)  (11,248)  (38,372)  (25,496)
Minority interests DB R
25 - (11) 282 (1,087) (488)
9,711) (5,387)  (10,966)  (39,459)  (25,984)
Loss per share % &5 18
Basis (HK cents) AR GBAL) (4.86) (2.69) (5.62) (19.19) (12.82)
Diluted (HK cents) g OBL) NATER NATEA NATERB NATEA NATEB
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERE &
Total assets EERE 34,939 24,345 23,621 51,647 71,591
Total liabilities BELSE (49,803) (30,274) (22,788) (39,321) (23,088)
(14,864) (5,929) 833 12,326 48,503
Total equity attributable to 7N &) # 25
equity shareholders of BHAa AEWN
the Company T R (16,340) (7,314) 472) 11,326 46,416
Minority interests LEIRE R 1,476 1,385 1,305 1,000 2,087
(14,864) (5,929) 833 12,326 48,503
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